
 

Bindusagar Reddy Martha A. Flores Hans Kashyap Liberty Lomeli Areli Martinez 

Zone 1 Zone 2 Zone 3 Zone 4 Zone 5 

 

 

 

       

 

SIERRA VIEW LOCAL HEALTH CARE DISTRICT 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS MONTHLY MEETING  

465 West Putnam Avenue, Porterville, CA – Board Room 

 

AMENDED AGENDA 

February 24, 2026 
    

OPEN SESSION (5:00 PM) 

 
The Board of Directors will call the meeting to order at 5:00 P.M. at which time the Board of 
Directors will undertake procedural items on the agenda. At 5:05 P.M. the Board will move to 

Closed Session regarding the items listed under Closed Session. The public meeting will 
reconvene in person at 5:30 P.M. In person attendance by the public during the open session(s) 

of this meeting is allowed in accordance with the Ralph M. Brown Act, Government Code 
Sections 54950 et seq.  

 
Call to Order  

 
I. Approval of Agendas 

Recommended Action: Approve/Disapprove the Agenda as Presented/Amended 
 

The Board Chairman may limit each presentation so that the matter may be concluded 
in the time allotted.  Upon request of any Board member to extend the time for a matter, 
either a Board vote will be taken as to whether to extend the time allotted or the chair 

may extend the time on his own motion without a vote.  
 

II. Adjourn Open Session and go into Closed Session 
 

 
CLOSED SESSION (5:01 PM) 

 
As provided in the Ralph M. Brown Act, Government Code Sections 54950 et seq., the Board of 

Directors may meet in closed session with members of the staff, district employees and its 
attorneys.  These sessions are not open to the public and may not be attended by members of 

the public.  The matters the Board will meet on in closed session are identified on the agenda or 
are those matters appropriately identified in open session as requiring immediate attention and 

arising after the posting of the agenda.  Any public reports of action taken in the closed session 
will be made in accordance with Gov. Code Section 54957.1 
 

III. Closed Session Business  
 

A. Pursuant to Evidence Code Sections 1156 and 1157.7; Health and Safety Code 
Section 32106(b): Chief of Staff Report. 

 
 



 

 

  

 

SIERRA VIEW LOCAL HEALTH CARE DISTRICT 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS MONTHLY MEETING AMENDED AGENDA  

February 24, 2026 
 

Page 2 
Bindusagar Reddy Martha A. Flores Hans Kashyap Liberty Lomeli Areli Martinez 

Zone 1 Zone 2 Zone 3 Zone 4 Zone 5 

 

 
1. General Update; 

2. Report on Peer Review/Credentials  
 

B. Pursuant to Evidence Code Sections 1156 and 1157.7; Health and Safety Code 
Section 32106(b):  

 
1. Quality Division Update 

2. Compliance Quarterly Report 
 

C. Pursuant to Gov. Code Section 54962; Health and Safety Code Section 32106(c): 

Discussion Regarding Trade Secrets Pertaining to Financial Services and Strategic 

Planning and Gov. Code Section 54956.9 (B)(3)(F):: Conference with Legal Counsel, 
Significant Exposure to Litigation. Estimated date of disclosure December 1, 2026.   

 

D. Pursuant to Gov. Code Section 54962; Health and Safety Code Section 32106(c): 

Discussion Regarding Trade Secrets Pertaining to Services and Strategic Planning. 

Estimated date of disclosure December 1, 2026.   
 

E. Pursuant To Gov. Code Section 54956.9(D)(2), Conference With Legal Counsel About 

Recent Work Product (B)(1) And (B)(3)(F): Significant Exposure To Litigation; Privileged 
Communication (1 Items).   

 
To the extent items on the Closed Session Agenda are not completed prior to the scheduled 

time for the Open Session to begin, the items will be deferred to the conclusion of the Open 
Session Agenda. 

  
IV. Adjourn Closed Session and go into Open Session 

 
 

OPEN SESSION (5:30 PM)  
 

V. Closed Session Action Taken 
 

Pursuant to Gov. Code Section 54957.1; Action(s) to be taken Pursuant to Closed Session 

Discussion 
 

A. Chief of Staff Report: 
 

1. General Report 
 Recommended Action: Information only; no action taken  



 

 

  

 

SIERRA VIEW LOCAL HEALTH CARE DISTRICT 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS MONTHLY MEETING AMENDED AGENDA  

February 24, 2026 
 

Page 3 
Bindusagar Reddy Martha A. Flores Hans Kashyap Liberty Lomeli Areli Martinez 

Zone 1 Zone 2 Zone 3 Zone 4 Zone 5 

 

 
2. Report on Peer Review/Credentials 

 Recommended Action: Approve/Disapprove Report on Peer Review and 
Credentials as Given 

 
B. Quality Division Update: 

 
1. General Report 

 Recommended Action: Approve/Disapprove Quality Division Report as Given 
 

2. Compliance Report 
 Recommended Action: Approve/Disapprove Compliance Report as Given 
 

C. Discussion Regarding Trade Secrets Pertaining to Financial Services and General 
Strategic Planning 

Recommended Action: Information Only; No Action Taken 
 

D. Discussion Regarding Trade Secrets Pertaining to Services and General Strategic 
Planning 

 Recommended Action: Information Only; No Action Taken  
 

E. Conference with Legal Counsel  
 Recommended Action: Information Only; No Action Taken 

 
VI. Public Comments 

 

Pursuant to Gov. Code Section 54954.3 - NOTICE TO THE PUBLIC - At this time, members of 
the public may comment on any item not appearing on the agenda.  Under state law, 

matters presented under this item cannot be discussed or acted upon by the Board at 
this time.  For items appearing on the agenda, the public may make comments at this 

time or present such comments when the item is called.  This is the time for the public to 
make a request to move any item on the consent agenda to the regular agenda. Any 

person addressing the Board will be limited to a maximum of three (3) minutes so that all 
interested parties have an opportunity to speak with a total of thirty (30) minutes allotted 

for the Public Comment period.  Please state your name and address for the record prior 
to making your comment. Written comments submitted to the Board prior to the Meeting 

will be distributed to the Board at this time, but will not be read by the Board secretary 
during the public comment period. 

 

VII. Consent Agenda 
Recommended Action: Approve/Disapprove Consent Agenda as presented  



 

 

  

 

SIERRA VIEW LOCAL HEALTH CARE DISTRICT 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS MONTHLY MEETING AMENDED AGENDA  

February 24, 2026 
 

Page 4 
Bindusagar Reddy Martha A. Flores Hans Kashyap Liberty Lomeli Areli Martinez 

Zone 1 Zone 2 Zone 3 Zone 4 Zone 5 

 

 
Background information has been provided to the Board on all matters listed under the 

Consent Agenda, covering Medical Staff and Hospital policies, and these items are 
considered to be routine by the Board.  All items under the Consent Agenda covering 

Medical Staff and Hospital policies are normally approved by one motion.    If discussion is 
requested by any Board member(s) or any member of the public on any item addressed 

during public comment, then that item may be removed from the Consent Agenda and 
moved to the Business Agenda for separate action by the Board.            

 
 

VIII. Approval of Minutes 
 

A. January 27, 2026, Minutes of the Regular Meeting of the Board of Directors 

Recommended Action: Approve/Disapprove January 27, 2026, Minutes of the 
Annual Meeting of the Board of Directors 

 
IX. Business Items 

 
A. January 2026 Financials  

Recommended Action: Approve/Disapprove January Report as Presented 
 

B. Board Self Evaluation and Goals 
Recommended Action: Information only; No Action Taken 

 
 

X. SVLHCD Board Chair Report 

 
XI. SVMC CEO Report 

 
XII. Announcements:  

  
• Regular Board of Directors Meeting – March 24, 2026, at 5:00 p.m.   

 
XIII. Adjournment  

 
 

PUBLIC NOTICE 

 

Any person with a disability may request the agenda be made available in an appropriate alternative format.   

A request for a disability-related modification or accommodation may be made by a person with a disability who 

requires a modification or accommodation in order to participate in the public meeting to Melissa Crippen, VP of 

Quality and Regulatory Affairs, Sierra View Medical Center, at (559) 788-6047, Monday – Friday between 8:00 a.m. – 

4:30 p.m.  Such request must be made at least 48 hours prior to the meeting. 



 

 

  

 

SIERRA VIEW LOCAL HEALTH CARE DISTRICT 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS MONTHLY MEETING AMENDED AGENDA  

February 24, 2026 
 

Page 5 
Bindusagar Reddy Martha A. Flores Hans Kashyap Liberty Lomeli Areli Martinez 

Zone 1 Zone 2 Zone 3 Zone 4 Zone 5 

 

 

PUBLIC NOTICE ABOUT COPIES 

 

Materials related to an item on this agenda submitted to the Board after distribution of the agenda packet, as well as 

the agenda packet itself, are available for public inspection/copying during normal business hours at the 

Administration Office of Sierra View Medical Center, 465 W. Putnam Ave., Porterville, CA 93257.  Privileged and 

confidential closed session materials are/will be excluded until the Board votes to disclose said materials.   

 

 



 
     

APPROVED BY SENIOR LEADERSHIP TEAM
HOSPITAL POLICIES AND REPORTS FOR REVIEW 

AGENDA
CONSENT



Senior Leadership Team 2/24/2026 

Board of Director’s Approval 

 
Liberty Lomeli, Chairman 
 

 
2/24/2026 

 

 

SIERRA VIEW MEDICAL CENTER 
CONSENT AGENDA 
February 24, 2026 

BOARD OF DIRECTOR’S APPROVAL 

The following Polices/Procedures/Protocols/Plans have been reviewed by Senior Leadership Team 
and are being submitted to the Board of Director’s for approval:                                                                                                                             

                                                                                                                               Pages            Action 

 
 
 

 
Policies: 

 Administrator on Call – Authority in the Absence of the CEO 
 Appointment of the Chief Executive Officer 
 Authority in the Absence of the V.P. of Patient Care Services 
 Board of Directors, Orientation, Continuing Education and Self-

Assessment 
 Board of Directors, Authority and Responsibilities 
 Contingency Plan for Water Damaged Medical Records 
 Hospital Services – Closure, Elimination or relocation 
 Leadership Participation in Planning & Decision-Making 
 Mission and Vision Statements 
 Notice of Privacy Practices 
 Nurse Executive Qualifications and Appointment Process 
 Policy and Procedure System 
 Role Responsibilities of the CEO 
 Strategic Plan 
 Subpoenas, Summons & Complaints 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 

1 
2-3 
4 

5-6 
 

7-10 
11 

12-16 
17 
18 

19-22 
23-25 
26-29 
30-31 

32 
33-38 

 
 
 

 

 
Approve 

↓ 
 
 
 
 



    House Wide Policy & Procedure Manual 

 

SUBJECT:  

ADMINISTRATOR ON CALL/AUTHORITY IN 

THE ABSENCE OF THE CEO  

SECTION:   

Leadership (LD) 

Page 1 of 1 

Printed copies are for reference only. Please refer to the electronic copy for the latest version. 

 

 

PURPOSE: 

 

To maintain and define the continuity of care for our patients and sustain leadership within the Hospital 

while conveying the professional nature of our position in the community during the absence of the Chief 

Executive Officer. 

  

POLICY: 

 

1. In the absence of the Chief Executive Officer (CEO), the Administrator on Call (AOC) will act 

on the President/CEO’s behalf.   

 

2. The President/ CEO will designate the Senior Leadership and Administrative Directors Team 

membership as eligible to be AOC. 

 

3. An Administrator On Call Schedule is prepared and will be distributed to all members of Sr. 

Management Leadership and Administrative Directors as well as the Nursing Supervisor’s Office, 

Staffing Coordinator, Director of Patient Registration Patient Access leadership and the 

Switchboard Operators. 

 

• A schedule will be created by the Executive Assistant to the President/CEO on a quarterly 

basis.  Once approved by the membershipCEO, it will be distributed House-wide. 

 

• Each member of the team will be on Administrative Call beginning on Friday morning 7 a.m. 

and ending on the following Friday morning 6:59 a.m. on a rotating basis to include holidays. 

Hand-off communication to new on call leader will be provided by outgoing leader. 

 

• Special requests for specific dates can be traded amongst the Senior Leadership Teamleaders 

to ensure coverage at all times. 

 

4. In the absence of the Administrator On Call, a memorandum will be circulated stating the 

individual designated to act on the CEO’s behalf.  Should the occasion arise during non-working 

hours when the designated Administrator oOn Call cannot be reached, the Nursing Supervisor for 

the shift will act on the CEO’s behalf. 

 

5. The California Department of Public Health, Licensing and Certification shall be notified in 

writing, whenever a permanent change of CEO (administrator) occurs. 

       

REFERENCES:  

 

• Sierra View Local Health Care District Board Bylaws, Article VII, Section 7.5.10 

 

 

1



    House Wide Policy & Procedure Manual 

 

SUBJECT:  

APPOINTMENT OF THE CHIEF EXECUTIVE 

OFFICER  

SECTION:   

Leadership (LD) 

Page 1 of 2 

Printed copies are for reference only. Please refer to the electronic copy for the latest version. 

 

 

PURPOSE: 

 

To define the Sierra View Local Health Care District Board of Directors process and criteria for 

selection/appointment of the Sierra View Medical Center Chief Executive Officer (CEO). 

 

POLICY: 

 

1. Established in the Sierra View Local Health Care District Board of Directors Bylaws, the Board 

of Directors shall have the authority to select, employ, control and discharge the CEO, who shall 

report to the Board and who shall be its direct executive representative and responsible for the 

overall management of the hospital.  The criteria for selection of the CEO is as follows: 

 

a. Must have a Master’s Degree in Hospital Administration or related field. 

 

b. Must have previous experience at Senior Management Level in an Acute Care Hospital. 

 
c. CEO must demonstrate excellent employee relation skills. 

 
d. CEO must be visionary and provide strategic leadership.  

 

e. Must demonstrate that previous employment demonstrated a very positive bottom line 

during their leadership as the CEO. 

 

f. Must be flexible and be able to work under the following working conditions: Subject to 

varying and unpredictable situations, emergency or crisis situations, many long and 

irregular hours. 

 
g. CEO to demonstrate ability to work effectively with a wide-range of stakeholders.  

 

2. The duties and the responsibilities of the CEO include, but are not limited to, the provision of 

leadership, direction, and administration of all aspects for Sierra View Local Health Care District 

activities to ensure compliance with established objectives and the realization of quality, 

economical healthcare services and other related lines of business and are further delineated in 

writing in the Bylaws and formal Job Description of the Sierra View Medical Center Chief 

Executive Officer. 

 

3. The Sierra View Local Health Care District Board of Directors may enter into a contract of 

employment with a CEO, the duration of which shall not exceed four years, but which may 

periodically be renewed upon expiration for not more than four years per contract period. 

 

4. The Board of Directors shall perform an annual evaluation of the CEO, assessing the 

effectiveness of the CEO based upon the goals and criteria established by the Board of Directors. 

 

 

2



    House Wide Policy & Procedure Manual 

 

SUBJECT:  

APPOINTMENT OF THE CHIEF EXECUTIVE 

OFFICER  

SECTION:   

Leadership (LD) 

Page 2 of 2 

Printed copies are for reference only. Please refer to the electronic copy for the latest version. 

 

 

REFERENCES:  

 

• Health & Safety Code Section 32121.5 

 

• Title 22, Division 5, Article 7, Section 70701(2) 

 

• Sierra View District HospitalLocal Health Care District Board Bylaws, Article 7, Section 7.5 

 

• The Joint Commission (201925).  Hospital accreditation standards.  Joint Commission Resources. 

Oak Brook, IL. 

 

 

 

3



 Patient Care Services Policy & Procedure Manual 

 

SUBJECT:  

AUTHORITY IN THE ABSENCE OF THE V.P. OF 

PATIENT CARE SERVICES 

SECTION:   

Leadership (LD) 

Page 1 of 1 

Printed copies are for reference only. Please refer to the electronic copy for the latest version. 

 

 

PURPOSE: 

 

To provide for continuity of ultimate decision authority and accountability within the Division of 

Nursing. 

 

POLICY: 

 

1. The Vice President of Patient Care Services (VPPCS) /  Chief Nurse Officer Executive has 

overall responsibility, accountability, and authority for directing all matters pertaining to Patient 

Care Services, including staffing patterns and patient care. 

 

2. In the absence of the VPPCS/CNOE, a designee will be appointed by the VPPCS/CNOE as 

“Acting Chief Nurse OfficerExecutive” and will be consulted on all nursing administrative 

matters. 

 

3. The House Supervisor on duty during the hours when members of the senior nursing leaders 

(CNOE and nursing directors) are not present is considered to be in charge of the hospital. 

 

4. In the absence of nursing department directors, each director will appoint a designee to assume 

responsibility for their respective area(s). 

 

AFFECTED AREAS/ PERSONNEL:   DIVISION OF NURSING  

 

REFERENCES:  

    

• The Joint Commission (2019-20252022).  Hospital accreditation standards.  Joint Commission 

Resources. Oak Brook, IL. 

 

• State of California. (202514). California Administrative Code Title XXII, 70211(c). 

 

 

4



     House Wide Policy & Procedure 

Manual 

 

SUBJECT:  

BOARD OF DIRECTORS, ORIENTATION, 

CONTINUING EDUCATION AND SELF-

ASSESSMENT   

SECTION:   

Leadership (LD) 

Page 1 of 2 

Printed copies are for reference only. Please refer to the electronic copy for the latest version. 

 

 

Formatted: Font: Times New Roman, Bold, Underline

PURPOSE: 

 

To define the Sierra View Local Health Care District Board of Directors orientation, continuing education 

and self-assessment. 

 

POLICY: 

 

1. Each newly elected or appointed Director shall be provided with a Director Orientation Book 

from the President/CEO/Current/Elected Chairman of the Board of Directors.  Each newly 

elected, or appointed Director shall be duly oriented to the management of the hospital.  At that 

time, the new Director shall be supplied with and oriented to the following material: 

 

a. Sierra View Medical Center (SVMC) Mission and Vision Statements; 

 

b. SVMC Organization Chart; 

 

c. Sierra View Local Health Care District Board of Directors Bylaws; 

 

d. SVMC Medical Staff Bylaws and Rules & Regulations; 

 

e. SVMC Management Leadership Phone Directory; 

 

f. SVMC Performance Improvement Plan to include but not be limited to safety, quality, 

and compliance goals; 

 

g. Background on accrediting and licensing agencies and their requirements; 

 

h. Applicable summary of titles and regulations; 

 

i. Individual and interdependent responsibilities and accountabilities of the governing body, 

senior management leadership and leaders of the organized medical staff as they relate to 

supporting the mission of the hospital and to providing quality and safe care. 

 

j. SVMC financial processes to include budget development as well a interpretation of the 

hospital’s financial statements; 

 

k. Copy of the Brown Act; 

 

l. Copy of the previous three (3) months’ Board minutes, financial statements, and agenda 

packet; and, 

 

5



     House Wide Policy & Procedure 

Manual 

 

SUBJECT:  

BOARD OF DIRECTORS, ORIENTATION, 

CONTINUING EDUCATION AND SELF-

ASSESSMENT   

SECTION:   

Leadership (LD) 

Page 2 of 2 

Printed copies are for reference only. Please refer to the electronic copy for the latest version. 

 

 

Formatted: Font: Times New Roman, Bold, Underline

m. The new Director shall be offered the opportunity to schedule individual meetings with 

the Chief Financial Officer, Vice President of Physician Recruitment and Professional 

Services, Vice President of Patient Care Services and the opportunity to meet with the 

President/CEO again, if deemed necessary. 

 

2. Continuing education may be provided by the President/CEO as requested by individual Board 

members.  Board conferences, workshops and retreats as well as outside educational programs 

may be included as part of the continuing education program. 

 

3. There shall be an annual self-assessment of the effectiveness of the Board of Directors, based 

upon the goals and criteria established by the Board of Directors, completed by each member of 

the Board.  

 

REFERENCES:     

 

• The Joint Commission (202519).  Hospital accreditation standards.  Joint Commission Resources. 

Oak Brook, IL. 

 

 

6



    House Wide Policy & Procedure Manual 

 

SUBJECT:  

BOARD OF DIRECTORS,AUTHORITY AND 

RESPONSIBILITIES  

SECTION:   

Leadership (LD) 

Page 1 of 4 

Printed copies are for reference only. Please refer to the electronic copy for the latest version. 

 

 

PURPOSE: 

 

To define the Sierra View Local Health Care District Board of Directors powers and responsibilities for 

provision of the general oversight and governance of Sierra View Medical Center (Hospital) in 

accordance to the California Code of Regulations, Title 22, and the Health and Safety Code Division 23, 

Chapter 2, Article 2, Section 32121 et seq. 

 

The Sierra View Local Health Care District (District) is organized for the purposes described in the Local 

Health Care District Law, and shall have and may exercise such powers in the furtherance of its purposes 

as are now or may hereafter be set forth in the Local Health Care District law and any other applicable 

statues, rules or regulations of the State of California.  The Board of Directors (Board) is the governing 

body of the District and has the legal and fiduciary responsibilities to govern the district and its hospital 

services.  All district powers and responsibilities shall be exercised by or under the direction of the Board. 

 

POLICY: 

 

1. The Board is ultimately accountable for the safety and quality of care, treatment and services, 

compliance and electronic security provided at the Hospital.  To that end, they shall adopt written 

bylaws in accordance with legal requirements and its community responsibility which shall 

include, but not be limited to provision for: 

 

a. Identification of the purpose,s and mission, vision and values of the hospital and the 

means of fulfilling them. 

 

b. The Board is authorized to make appropriate delegations of its powers and authority to 

officers and employees to include identifying those responsible for planning, 

management and operational activities as well as those responsible for the provision of 

care, treatment and services, compliance and electronic security. 

 

c. The Board shall select and appoint a President/Chief Executive Officer (CEO) 

(Administrator or Interim) whose qualifications, authority and duties shall be defined in a 

written statement adopted by the governing body.  

 
 

d. The Board works with CEO, Senior Management Leadership and leaders of the 

organized medical staff to annually evaluate the Hospital’s performance in relation to its 

mission, vision, goals and compliance. 

 

e. The Board provides strategic direction to meet the community health needs and 

represents the interests of the community served by incorporating input into decision-

making. 

 

Formatted: List Paragraph,  No bullets or numbering

Formatted: Indent: Left:  1",  No bullets or numbering

Formatted: Indent: Left:  1",  No bullets or numbering

Formatted: List Paragraph,  No bullets or numbering

7



    House Wide Policy & Procedure Manual 

 

SUBJECT:  

BOARD OF DIRECTORS,AUTHORITY AND 

RESPONSIBILITIES  

SECTION:   

Leadership (LD) 

Page 2 of 4 

Printed copies are for reference only. Please refer to the electronic copy for the latest version. 

 

 

f. The Board adopts and approves policies and procedures and annual budgets and monitors 

financial performance, including audits.  

c.  

 

d. The Board ensures effective operations of the Patient Grievance Process. Provides a 

system for resolving patients’ grievances, employee concerns and grievances and patient 

safety event reporting.  

g.  

 

f.h. The Board works with Medical Staff Leaders who are ultimately responsible for 

credentialing and re-credentialing of the Medical Staff. 

 

The Medical Staff shall be self-governing with respect to the professional work 

performed in the hospital, governed in their professional conduct by the highest  

Ethical standards of the medical profession, as outlined in the Code of Ethics applicable 

to the Practitioner.  Membership in the Medical Staff organization shall be a prerequisite 

to the exercise of clinical privileges in the hospital, except as otherwise specifically 

provided in the Medical Staff Bylaws. 

 

Formal organization of the Medical Staff which shall be comprised of all independent 

licensed Practitioners providers who are members of the medical staff and privileged to 

attend admit or provide medical or health related services to patients in the hospital.  

Board will approve medical staff re-appointments on a biannual basis in accordance with 

medical staff bylaws. with appropriate officers and bylaws and with staff re-appointments 

on a biannual basis. 

 

The Medical Staff shall be self-governing with respect to the professional work 

performed in the hospital, governed in their professional conduct by the highest  

ethical standards of the medical profession, as outlined in the Code of Ethics applicable 

to the Practitioner.  Membership in the Medical Staff organization shall be a prerequisite 

to the exercise of clinical privileges in the hospital, except as otherwise specifically 

provided in the Medical Staff Bylaws. 

  

Preparation and maintenance of a complete and accurate medical record for each patient. 

 

 Provides a system for resolving conflicts among individuals and employed physicians 

working in the hospital. 

 

h.i. Require that the medical staff establish controls that are designed to ensure the 

achievement and maintenance of high standards of professional ethical practices, 

including provision that all members of the Medical Staff be required to demonstrate 

their ability to perform surgical and/or other procedures competently and to the 

Formatted: List Paragraph,  No bullets or numbering

Formatted: Indent: Left:  0"

8



    House Wide Policy & Procedure Manual 

 

SUBJECT:  

BOARD OF DIRECTORS,AUTHORITY AND 

RESPONSIBILITIES  

SECTION:   

Leadership (LD) 

Page 3 of 4 

Printed copies are for reference only. Please refer to the electronic copy for the latest version. 

 

 

satisfaction of an appropriate committee or committees of the Medical Staff, at the time 

of original application for appointment to the staff and at least every two years thereafter. 

 

NOTE:  Organized medical staff members are eligible for full membership in the 

hospital’s governing body, unless legally prohibited (by election or appointment). 

 

i.j. Assure that the Medical Staff Bylaws, Rules and Regulations are subject to governing 

body approval, which approval shall not be withheld unreasonably.  The Medical Staff 

Bylaws shall include an effective formal means for the Medical Staff, as a liaison, to 

participate in the development of all hospital policy. 

 

7. The Board shall select and appoint a President/CEO (administrator or interim) whose 

qualifications, authority and duties shall be defined in a written statement adopted by the 

governing body. 

 

2. The Department of Health Services shall be notified in writing whenever a change of 

President/CEO (administrator) occurs. 

 

3. Provide appropriate resources required to maintain safe, quality care, treatment and services, 

compliance and electronic security.  

 

4. Take all reasonable steps to conform to all applicable federal, state and local laws and 

regulations, including those relating to licensure, fire inspection and other safety measures. 

 

5. The Board shall be responsible for the operation of the facilities owned, leased, or operated by the 

District, according to the best interests of the public health, and shall make and enforce all rules, 

regulations and bylaws necessary for the administration, governance, protection and maintenance 

of the facilities under the Board’s management and all property belonging thereto, (and may 

prescribe the terms upon which patients may be admitted thereto if necessary).  Biannual rReview 

and/or revision of the existing Governing Board Bylaws every 3-4 years to assure compliance 

with such Federal, State and Governmental regulations effected by ongoing legislative changes. 

 

6. Provide for the control and use of the physical and financial resources of the hospital. 

 

7. The Board shall provide the organized Medical Staff representation (through attendance and 

voice), by allowing Chief of Staff as elected by Medical Staff, to attend Board Meetings and 

provide reports to the Board of Directors.  

 

REFERENCES:    

 

• Health & Safety Code Division 23, Chapter 2, Article 2, Section 32121 et seq. 

 

• Sierra View Local Health Care District Bylaws 

 

9



    House Wide Policy & Procedure Manual 

 

SUBJECT:  

BOARD OF DIRECTORS,AUTHORITY AND 

RESPONSIBILITIES  

SECTION:   

Leadership (LD) 

Page 4 of 4 

Printed copies are for reference only. Please refer to the electronic copy for the latest version. 

 

 

• Title 22, Division 5, Article 7, Section 70701 

 

 

10



 Health Information Management Policy & Procedure Manual 

 

SUBJECT:  

CONTINGENCY PLAN FOR WATER DAMAGED 

MEDICAL RECORDS  

SECTION:   

 

Page 1 of 1 

Printed copies are for reference only. Please refer to the electronic copy for the latest version. 

 

 

POLICY: 

 

It is the policy of Sierra View Medical Center (SVMC) to provide a contingency plan in the event that 

records are damaged due to water damage. Any type of damage is destructive. Water damage from flood 

or fire can be most devastating.  

 

PROCEDURE 

 

1. The following procedures should be implemented as soon as the water is removed and the amount 

of damage is assessed.  

 

a. Determine what documents should be rescued using the retention requirements. 

 

b. Prioritize which records should be removed first in order to keep the hospital functioning. 

 

c. Records are to be removed within 48 hours of damage to prevent mold, mildew and 

bacteria growth. 

 

d. Depending on the degree of damage, the records can be restored by: 

 

• Air drying the records by placing absorbent material between each document and 

then using fans for increased air circulation. 

 

• Freezing the records and keeping them in cold storage.  This process stops the 

deterioration of handwritten data on paper records. 

 

• Freeze-drying is the quickest and most expensive method.  It is only for optimal 

preservation of original records that are totally irreplaceable. 

 

• Remember that time is a critical factor.  Move as quickly as possible to recover 

damaged information. 

 

REFERENCE: 

• California Code of Regulations, Title 22, § 70751 

 

 

 

11



    House Wide Policy & Procedure Manual 

 

SUBJECT:  

HOSPITAL SERVICES – CLOSURE , 

ELIMINATION OR RELOCATION  

SECTION:   

Leadership (LD) 

Page 1 of 5 

Printed copies are for reference only. Please refer to the electronic copy for the latest version. 

 

 

PURPOSE: 

 

To establish a process wherein public notice is given in advance 30 days prior to closing a Sierra 

View Local Health Care District health facility, or eliminating a supplemental service; appropriate 

notices are posted; and, a notice forwarded to the California Department of Public Health Services 

(CDPH) and to the Tulare County Board of Supervisors. Local emergency medical services authority 

will be notified if emergency services are affected.   

 

To establish a process where public notice is given 30 days priorin advance to relocation of the 

provision of supplemental services to a different campus or a health facility and to provide posting of 

notices in appropriate locations at all affected facilities; and a notice forwarded to the California 

Department of Public health Services (CDPH) and to the Tulare County Board of Supervisors.  

 

Rationale 

 

It is the intention of the Hospital Board of Directors and Leadership that this policy is enforced in a 

consistent and appropriate manner. The policy delineates the applicable Title 22, Division and Section 

of the California Code of Regulations that cites the process for posting a public notice for closure, 

elimination or relocation of any Hospital/District Services; and, to forward notices to CDPH and to 

the Tulare County Board of Supervisors.   

 

This policy will be interpreted and enforced by the Board of Directors or Board-appointed designees.  

 

The Board of Directors will assure that: 

 

A. Any Hospital/District Service(s) that are to be closed, eliminated or relocated shall be noticed 

in accordance with applicable laws and regulations and shall include all of the following: 

 

1. A description of the proposed closure, elimination, or relocation.  The description 

shall be limited to publicly available data, including the number of beds eliminated, if 

any, the probable decrease in the number of personnel, and a summary of any service 

that is being eliminated, if applicable. 

 

2. A description of the three nearest available comparable services in the community.  If 

the health facility closing these services serves Medi-Cal or Medicare patients; this 

health facility shall specify if the providers of the nearest available comparable 

services serve these patients. 

 

3. Written public notice will be posted at the facility entrances, website, local 

newspaper and with permission, at community health clinics. 

3.4. A telephone number and address for each of the following, where interested parties 

may offer comments: 

 

a. The health facility; 

12



    House Wide Policy & Procedure Manual 

 

SUBJECT:  

HOSPITAL SERVICES – CLOSURE , 

ELIMINATION OR RELOCATION  

SECTION:   

Leadership (LD) 

Page 2 of 5 

Printed copies are for reference only. Please refer to the electronic copy for the latest version. 

 

 

 

b. The parent entity, if any, or contracted company, if any, that acts as the 

administrator of the health facility; and, 

 

c. The Chief Executive Officer. 

 

d. The Board of Directors furthermore delegates the Senior Management 

TeamLeadership staff to assure appropriate quasi-legislative processes and 

public notices are accomplished in compliance with the California Code of 

Regulations; Title 22. 

 

B.  Advance Public Notice will be posted for minimum notice periods as follows: 

 a. At least 120 days for Hospital closure of entire facility 

 b. At least 180 days notice for reduction or elimination of emergency medical 

services 

 c.At least 120 days notice for elimination of perinatal services 

 d. At least 30 days notice for closure or relocation of all other services 

  

C. Public Hearings requirement (for closure of perinatal unit) 

 

 a. Hold at least one public hearing 60 days after providing notice 

 b. Make the hearing accessible including remote participation 

d. c. Notify the Tulare County Board of Supervisors and invite testimony about 

community impacts 

 

D.  Regulatory filings and notifications: 

  a.  CDPH will receive written notice of the closure within 30 days of the closure  

b. Notice will include the following: 

1. Last date of patient care   

  2. Final licensure date 

  3. Facility address and forwarding contact information 

 

AFFECTED AREAS/PERSONNEL:  

 

BOARD MEMBERS, ADMINISTRATION; AND, MEDICAL STAFF MEMBERS 

 

REFERENCES: 

 

• California Code of Regulations, Title 22 §97007, Division 5, Chapter 1, Section 70067, and Health 

and Safety Code Section §1255.250, Subdivision (a) or (b);  

• AB 2037 

• SB1300 

 

Formatted: List Paragraph, Right:  0",  No bullets or
numbering

Formatted:  No bullets or numbering

Formatted: Indent: First line:  0.5",  No bullets or
numbering

Formatted:  No bullets or numbering

Formatted: Indent: First line:  0.5",  No bullets or

Formatted: Indent: Left:  0.5",  No bullets or numbering

Formatted: Font: Not Bold

Formatted: Indent: Left:  0.5", First line:  0.5"

Formatted: Font: Times New Roman

Formatted: Font: Bold

Formatted: Font: Bold

13



    House Wide Policy & Procedure Manual 

 

SUBJECT:  

HOSPITAL SERVICES – CLOSURE , 

ELIMINATION OR RELOCATION  

SECTION:   

Leadership (LD) 

Page 3 of 5 

Printed copies are for reference only. Please refer to the electronic copy for the latest version. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

ATTACHMENT A 

 

ESTABLISH AD HOC INVESTIGATORY COMMITTEE (AHIC) MEMBERSHIP 

 

The AHIC shall consist of two Board Directors, Chief of Staff, Department Chair of Service being 

closed/relocated, President/CEO, a member of the community; the Department Director and Vice 

President over the Service to be closed/relocated and the District Secretary. 

 

The role of the AHIC will be to review the evidence, findings, statements and other information 

submitted regarding the _____ Service.  Based upon their findings, the AHIC will submit a report and 

recommendation to the Board of Directors at their regular meeting on ______ (date). 

 

The evidentiary support of the benefits of closing/relocating the _____ Service should include some, 

or all of the following: 

 

14



    House Wide Policy & Procedure Manual 

 

SUBJECT:  

HOSPITAL SERVICES – CLOSURE , 

ELIMINATION OR RELOCATION  

SECTION:   

Leadership (LD) 

Page 4 of 5 

Printed copies are for reference only. Please refer to the electronic copy for the latest version. 

 

 

1. Preservation of the hospital’s management ability to make managerial and policy 

determinations in order to fulfill its responsibility to ensure the competence of the 

medical staff in the quality of the patient care provided; 

 

2. ...continue with the applicable information related to closure/relocation of the 

particular Service being closed/relocated… 

 

Any questions regarding the quasi-legislative review process and the AHIC’s responsibilities should 

be directed to the President/CEO or the District Secretary, at (559) 788-6101. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

ATTACHMENT B 

 

NOTICE 

PUBLIC NOTICE  

 

YOU WILL PLEASE TAKE NOTICE that the Sierra View Local Health Care District, dba, Sierra 

View Medical Center, Board of Directors has established a quasi-legislative review process and 

appointed an Ad Hoc Investigatory Committee (“AHIC”) to take evidence regarding the Hospital’s 

_______ Service operations and policies including consideration of closure/relocation of the ______ 

Service.  The AHIC will make a report to the Board regarding its findings and recommendations. 

 

The Board strongly encourages any interested members of the Medical Staff, particularly providers of 

the _____ Service, to submit written evidence, statements or other information with respect to the 

issues to the Sierra View Medical Center Administration office by ______ (date).  No submissions 

15



    House Wide Policy & Procedure Manual 

 

SUBJECT:  

HOSPITAL SERVICES – CLOSURE , 

ELIMINATION OR RELOCATION  

SECTION:   

Leadership (LD) 

Page 5 of 5 

Printed copies are for reference only. Please refer to the electronic copy for the latest version. 

 

 

received after the deadline will be considered.  At its regularly scheduled meeting in _________ 

(date), the Board of Directors will meet to consider AHIC’s report and recommendations. 

16



    House Wide Policy & Procedure Manual 

 

SUBJECT:  

LEADERSHIP PARTICIPATION IN PLANNING & 

DECISION-MAKING  

SECTION:   

Leadership (LD) 

Page 1 of 1 

Printed copies are for reference only. Please refer to the electronic copy for the latest version. 

 

 

PURPOSE: 

 

To outline and define those processes of planning and decision-making where collaboration is required 

among leaders and other representatives from the organization. 

 

POLICY: 

 

1. The Sierra View Medical Center’s Senior Management TeamLeaders, Department Managers and 

Directors of the appropriate services collaborate to: 

 

a. Develop organization-wide patient care programs, policies, and procedures that describe 

how patients’ care needs are assessed and met. 

 

b. Develop and implement plan for provision of patient care. 

 

c. Participate in decision-making processes and structures. 

 

d. Implement an effective, continuous improvement program to measure, assess and 

improve outcome performance (Performance Improvement Program [long-term] and 

Performance Improvement Teams [short term]. 

 

e. Participate in the planning process for long and short-term facility needs including those 

related to patient care services. 

 

f. Collaborate in budget planning and development. 

 

2. The Senior Management TeamLeadership meets weekly, or more often as deemed necessary. 

 

AFFECTED AREAS/PERSONNEL:   ALL IDENTIFIED LEADERSHIP 

 

REFERENCES:  

 

• The Joint Commission (202519).  Hospital accreditation standards.  Joint Commission Resources. 

Oak Brook, IL. 

 

 

17



    House Wide Policy & Procedure Manual 

 

SUBJECT:  

MISSION AND VISION STATEMENTS   

SECTION:   

Leadership (LD) 

Page 1 of 1 

Printed copies are for reference only. Please refer to the electronic copy for the latest version. 

 

 

PURPOSE: 

 

To define the mission and vision of Sierra View Medical Center 

 

PURPOSE: 

 

The mission and vision of the Hospital will support the safety and quality of care, treatment and services 

of the population served. 

 

It is the responsibility of the Hospital’s leadership to provide for the safety and quality of care, treatment 

and services.  The Board of Directors, hospital leaders and leaders of the organized medical staff will 

work together to create the Hospital’s mission and vision statements which guide the actions of the 

leaders and the development and updating of the Hospital’s Strategic Plan. 

 

Ultimately, these will be communicated to staff and the population the hospital serves. 

 

Sierra View Medical Center Mission Statement  

 

SVMC promotes health and ensures access to high quality healthcare services.  This will be achieved: 

 

• Through partnerships and collaborations 

• By being a good steward of resources to ensure it can continue to meet the health needs of the 

community 

 

Sierra View Medical Center Vision Statement  

 

Be the preferred choice for health care by providing excellent, patient-centered care through 

engaged/caring physicians and employees, academic training and timely access to care.Strengthen the 

quality of life through the delivery of integrated health care programs and services that promote access, 

care coordination and patient care experience. 

 

 

REFERENCE:   

 

• The Joint Commission (202519).  Hospital accreditation standards.  Joint Commission Resources. 

Oak Brook, IL. 

 

CROSS REFERENCE:   

 

• Strategic Plan 

 

 

18



Health Information Management Policy & Procedure Manual 

SUBJECT: 

NOTICE OF PRIVACY PRACTICES 

SECTION: 

Ethics, Rights, & Responsibilities (RI) 

Page 1 of 4 

 

Printed copies are for reference only. Please refer to the electronic copy for the latest version. 

 
PURPOSE: 

 

To define the manner by which Sierra View Medical Center (SVMC) will fulfill the requirement to 

provide a Notice of Privacy Practices to all patients as required by the Health Insurance Portability and 

Accountability Act (HIPAA), Standards for Privacy of Individually Identifiable Health Information 

(Privacy Standards), 45 CFR Parts 160 and 164, the Health Information Technology for Economic and 

Clinical Health Act (HITECH) component of the American Recovery and Reinvestment Act (ARRA), 

and any and all other Federal regulations and interpretive guidelines. 

 

POLICY: 

 

SVMC must provide adequate Notice of Privacy Practices to all patients, including newborns but 

excluding inmates. A written acknowledgement receipt of the Notice must be obtained from the patient or 

patient’s designated caregiver or legal representative. 

 

DEFINITIONS: 
 

Affiliated Covered Entity - Entities under common ownership or control may designate themselves as an 

Affiliated Covered Entity. Hospitals which are in a shared Clinical Patient Care System market and share 

patient information for purposes of payment and healthcare operations will automatically be designated as 

an affiliated covered entity under the rule. 

 

Direct treatment relationship – A relationship between a healthcare provider and patient where the 

healthcare provider delivers healthcare directly to the individual. 

 

Organized Health Care Arrangement - A clinically integrated care setting in which individuals typically 

receive healthcare from more than one healthcare provider. The facility and its medical staff are an 

Organized Health Care Arrangement under the rule. 

 

AFFECTED AREAS/PERSONNEL: ALL EMPLOYEES 

 

PROCEDURE: 

 

1. SVMC must provide a Notice that is written in plain language and that includes, at a minimum, 

the standard notice language attached to this policy. There may be individual facility situations 

that warrant additions to the standard form such as residency programs or research programs. 

These additions may be made at the discretion of the Chief Privacy Officer (CPO) in consultation 

with the SVMC Compliance committee responsible for the Privacy Program and, in appropriate 

circumstances SVMC’s Legal Counsel. 

19



Health Information Management Policy & Procedure Manual 

SUBJECT: 

NOTICE OF PRIVACY PRACTICES 

SECTION: 

Ethics, Rights, & Responsibilities (RI) 

Page 2 of 4 

 

Printed copies are for reference only. Please refer to the electronic copy for the latest version. 

 

2. The patient must acknowledge in writing (i.e., initials) receipt of each version of the Notice of 

Privacy Practices. This acknowledgement can be in either the Conditions of Admission/Consent 

for Treatment form or in another format that is included within the facility’s designated record set 

as deemed appropriate by the SVMC Compliance committee. Only the patient or the patient’s 

designated caregiver or legal representative may acknowledge receipt of the Notice. It is not 

appropriate for a spouse or other relative to acknowledge the Notice on the patient’s behalf unless 

they are the patient’s personal representative as defined by state law. 

 

For emergency treatment situations, acknowledgement of the Notice is encouraged but not 

required. 

 

3. Required Elements: 

 

a. The header statement must state: “This notice describes how medical information about 

you may be used and disclosed and how you can get access to this information.” 

 

b. A description, including at least one example, of the types of disclosures for the purposes 

of treatment, payment and healthcare operations. 

 

c. A description of each of the other purposes for which SVMC is permitted or required to 

use or disclose the information without an individual’s consent or authorization (e.g., 

State Reporting). 

 

d. A statement that if a use or disclosure is prohibited or materially limited by other 

applicable law, the description of such use or disclosure must reflect the more stringent 

law. 

 

e. A statement that the facility may contact the individual to: a) provide appointment 

reminders; b) provide information about treatment alternatives; or c) provide information 

about other health-related benefits and services, as applicable and one or more of these 

communications may be left on the patient’s answering machine/voice mail. 

 

f. A statement that other uses and disclosures will be made only with the individual’s 

written authorization and that the individual may revoke this authorization. 

 

g. A statement of the patient’s rights with respect to protected health information 

 

• The right to access protected health information (PHI) ; 

 

• The right to amend PHI ; 

 

• The right to receive confidential communications; 

 

• The right to an accounting of disclosures; 

20



Health Information Management Policy & Procedure Manual 

SUBJECT: 

NOTICE OF PRIVACY PRACTICES 

SECTION: 

Ethics, Rights, & Responsibilities (RI) 

Page 3 of 4 

 

Printed copies are for reference only. Please refer to the electronic copy for the latest version. 

 

• The right to request restrictions on certain uses and disclosures; 

 

• The right to obtain a copy of the Notice. 

 

h. A statement of the facility’s duties with respect to PHI. 

 

• SVMC is required by law to maintain the privacy of PHI and to provide this Notice 

with respect to PHI; 

 

• SVMC must abide by the terms of the Notice; 

 

• SVMC may apply a change to the Notice and make the new Notice effective for all 

PHI it maintains. The statement will also include how it will provide the revised 

Notice to individuals. 

 

i. A statement that patients may complain to the CPO or the Secretary of the U.S. 

Department of Health and Human Services if they believe their privacy rights have been 

violated, a brief description of how the individual may file a complaint, and a statement 

that the individual will not be retaliated against for filing a complaint. 

 

j. A statement that includes the name or title and telephone number of the CPO. 

 

k. The effective date of the notice. 

 

l. A statement that the notice may change. 

 

4. Facilities that have a direct treatment relationship with patients must: 

 

a. Provide the Notice no later than the date of the first service delivery; except in an 

emergency situation, in which case the facility must deliver the Notice as soon as 

practicable after the emergency situation. It is encouraged to distribute the Notice on 

subsequent service deliveries; however, are only required to do so if the Notice has had a 

material changed since last providing a copy to the patient; 

 

b. Have the Notice posted in a clear and prominent location (i.e., each patient 

access/registration location) where it is reasonable to expect individuals seeking service 

from SVMC to read the Notice; and 

 

c. Have the Notice available for individuals to take with them. 

 

5. SVMC must prominently post its Notice on the website and make the Notice available 

electronically through the website. 

 

6. Facilities may provide the Notice by e-mail. A paper copy must be provided at the request of the 

patient or if the mail transmission fails. 

21



Health Information Management Policy & Procedure Manual 

SUBJECT: 

NOTICE OF PRIVACY PRACTICES 

SECTION: 

Ethics, Rights, & Responsibilities (RI) 

Page 4 of 4 

 

Printed copies are for reference only. Please refer to the electronic copy for the latest version. 

 

7. If the first treatment service delivery to a patient is delivered electronically, SVMC must provide 

the Notice automatically and immediately. The individual may obtain a paper copy at his or her 

request. 

 

8. Facilities in an Organized Health Care Arrangement or in an Affiliated Covered Entity may use a 

joint Notice, meaning the same form; however, SVMC must provide the Notice upon interaction 

with the patient. These entities must be prepared to describe the facilities and physicians to 

which the joint Notice applies and must explain that information will be shared as necessary to 

carry out treatment, payment and healthcare operations. 

 

9. For recurring patients the Notice may be provided at the initial interaction and does not need to be 

provided again unless a change has been made. 

 

10. SVMC must document compliance by retaining copies of the Notices issued for at least six (6) 

years. 

 

11. SVMC may review and update the Notice but must distribute its Notice whenever there is a 

material change to the uses or disclosures, individual’s rights, legal duties or other privacy 

practices stated in the Notice. A material change to any term of the Notice may not be 

implemented prior to the effective date of Notice in which a material change is reflected. 

 

REFERENCES: 

 
 

• Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act (HIPAA), Standards for Privacy of Individually 

Identifiable Health Information, 45 CFR Parts 160 and 164 

 

• American Reinvestment and Recovery Act of 2009, Title XIII, Subtitle D 

 

CROSS REFERENCES: 

 

• Privacy Official Policy 

 

• Patient Privacy – Right to Access Policy 

 

• Patient Privacy – Right to Amend Policy 

 

• Patient Privacy – Right to Request Privacy Restrictions Policy 

 

• Records Management Policy 

22

https://powerdms.com/link/sierraview/document/?id=1578271
https://powerdms.com/link/sierraview/document/?id=1578273
https://powerdms.com/link/sierraview/document/?id=1578278
https://powerdms.com/link/sierraview/document/?id=1578426


 Nursing Administration Policy & Procedure Manual 

 

SUBJECT:  

NURSE EXECUTIVE: QUALIFICATIONS AND 

APPOINTMENT PROCESS, RESPONSIBILITIES 

AND ACCOUNTABILITIES 

SECTION:   

 

Page 1 of 3 

Printed copies are for reference only. Please refer to the electronic copy for the latest version. 

 

 

PURPOSE: 

 

The Chief Nurse Officer (CNO)Executive directs the delivery of nursing care, treatment, and services 

(TJC-NR, 2025) 

 

The CNO nurse executive functions at the senior leadership level to provide effective leadership and to 

coordinate leaders to deliver nursing care, treatment, and services (TJC, NR.2025). 

 

The CNO Chief Nurse Executive assumes an active leadership role with the hospital’s governing body, 

senior leadership, medical staff, management, and other clinical leaders in the hospital’s decision-making 

structure and process (TJC, NR 2025.01.01.01, 2019) 

RATIONALE: 

 

Nurses make up the front line of patient care; they are directly and intimately involved in the care, 

treatment, and services patients receive and are likely to be the most visible face of health care for 

patients who enter the hospital.  As a leader in the health care delivery system, the CNO nurse executive 

is vital to the establishment of a cohesive and collaborative nurse-care team, and ultimately, to the 

hospital that wishes to maintain safe, quality patient care.  The CNO nurse executive is also vital to the 

continuity of care each patient receives. In order toTo improve organization wide quality in nursing care, 

treatment, and services, the CNOnurse executive must assume an active leadership role in the hospital.  

 

POLICY: 

 

1. The CNO nurse executive will hold a current and active license as a registered nurse in the State 

of California.  The CNOnurse executive is qualified by advanced education and management 

experience.  

 

2.  The CNOnurse executive has a job description that specifies the lines of authority and 

accountability.    (See Job Description) 

 

• Consideration when selecting a CNOnurse executive: 

 

o The CNOnurse executive possesses a Bachelor’s Degree in Nursing and a 

postgraduate degree in nursing or a related field; or the knowledge and skills 

associated with an advanced degree; or a written plan to obtain these qualifications. 

 

o The education and experience required for peer leadership positions. 

 

o The hospital’s scope of services and complexity and the position’s authority and 

responsibility. 

 

o The scope and complexity of the nursing care needs of the major patient 

population(s) served by the hospital. 

 

23



 Nursing Administration Policy & Procedure Manual 

 

SUBJECT:  

NURSE EXECUTIVE: QUALIFICATIONS AND 

APPOINTMENT PROCESS, RESPONSIBILITIES 

AND ACCOUNTABILITIES 

SECTION:   

 

Page 2 of 3 

Printed copies are for reference only. Please refer to the electronic copy for the latest version. 

 

 

o The availability of nursing and administrative staff and services to assist the 

CNO nurse executive in the execution of responsibilities.  

 

3. The CNOnurse executive coordinates and directs the hospital’s nursing services 

 

• The development of hospital wide plans to provide nursing care, treatment, and services 

• The development of hospital wide programs, policies, and procedures that address how 

nursing care needs of the patient population are assessed, met and evaluated. 

• The development of an effective, ongoing program to measure, analyze, and improve the 

quality of nursing care, treatment, and services. 

 

4. The CNOnurse executive establishes guidelines for the delivery of nursing care, treatment, and 

services.  

 

• The CNOnurse executive, registered nurses, and other designated nursing staff write:  

o Standards of nursing practice for the hospital 

o Nursing standards of patient care, treatment, and services 

o Nursing policies and procedures 

o Nurse staffing plan(s) 

o Standards to measure, assess, and improve patient outcomes 

 

5. The CNOnurse executive directs the implementation of nursing policies and procedures, nursing 

standards, and a nurse staffing plan(s).  

 

• The CNOnurse executive or designee approves policies; nursing standards of patient care, 

treatment, and services; and standards of nursing practice for the hospital before 

implementation. 

• The CNOnurse executive implements nursing policies, procedures, and standards that 

describe and guide how the staff provide nursing care, treatment, and services.  

• The CNO nurse executive provides access to all nursing policies, procedures, and 

standards to the nursing staff. 

• The CNOnurse executive is responsible for the provision of nursing services 24-hours a 

day, 7-days a week.  

• The CNOnurse executive or designee exercises final authority over the staff who provide 

nursing care, treatment, and services 

• A registered nurse provides or supervises the nursing services 24-hours a day, 7-days a 

week.  

 

AFFECTED PERSONNEL/AREAS:    ADMINISTRATION; NURSING 

 

REFERENCE:    

 

• The Joint Commission. (202519). Nursing (NR) Chapter. Accreditation Participation Requirements 

(APR) Manual.    

 

24



 Nursing Administration Policy & Procedure Manual 

 

SUBJECT:  

NURSE EXECUTIVE: QUALIFICATIONS AND 

APPOINTMENT PROCESS, RESPONSIBILITIES 

AND ACCOUNTABILITIES 

SECTION:   

 

Page 3 of 3 

Printed copies are for reference only. Please refer to the electronic copy for the latest version. 

 

 

 

25



 House Wide Policy & Procedure Manual 

 

SUBJECT:  

POLICY AND PROCEDURE SYSTEM 

SECTION:   

Leadership (LD) 

Page 1 of 4 

Printed copies are for reference only. Please refer to the electronic copy for the latest version. 

 

 

PURPOSE: 

 

To define a single, digital, comprehensive system for the development, communication and maintenance 

of policies and procedures. To define the Document Management System – PowerDMS used at Sierra 

View Medical Center (SVMC) and the various applications and documents that will be maintained in the 

electronic document system. 

 

PowerDMS provides a streamlined collaboration and audit process through their digital document 

platform.  The system has the ability to store, organize, distribute and track facility documents.  

PowerDMS integrates policies, training and accreditation content to archive and ensure Federal and State 

compliance. 

 

 

POLICY: 

 

A. PowerDMS will allow the digital storage of the following:  
 

1. Policy Management 

2. Forms Management 

3. License Management 

4. TJC Assessments/Mock Assessments 

5. TJC Standards Manual – Hospital and Laboratory 

6. Mobile access for iIPhone and Android 

7. Standard Operating Procedures (SOP’s) 

8. Manufacturer’s Instructions For Use (MIFU) Logs 

 

A.B. In order to establish organization-wide consistency, ensure compliance with the requirements for 

licensing and accreditation, and allow affected personnel employees to work effectively and 

efficiently, all levels of affected personnel employees will have access to policies and 

procedures.  To accomplish these goals, the following guidelines are established: 

 

1. All organizational policies and procedures shall be stored in PowerDMS (Document 

Management System). the PolicyTech Policy and Procedure Management system. All 

affected personnel employees will have access to read all policies and procedures ion the 

system.  

 

2. All policies shall follow a standard format and editorial style as outlined in each policy 

template. 

 

3. Policy Owners (; i.e., Department Directors, Managers and Senior Management), are 

responsible for creating new policies, revising policies when needed, reviewing policies 

as required and identifying the need to archiveing obsolete policies.  

 

4. Department Directors and Senior Management areLeadership is responsible for 

communicating the existence of new policies or policy revisions to employees affected by 

the changes, and for ensuring employees read new policies and revisions as required.  

Formatted: Normal, Indent: Left:  0", Right:  0"

Formatted: Font: Times New Roman

Formatted: Font: Times New Roman

Formatted: Font: Times New Roman

Formatted: Font: Times New Roman

Formatted: Font: Times New Roman

Formatted: Font: Times New Roman

Formatted: Font: Times New Roman

Formatted: Font: Times New Roman

Formatted: Font: Times New Roman

Formatted: Font: Times New Roman

Formatted: Normal,  No bullets or numbering

Formatted: List Paragraph, Space Before:  0.05 pt,
Numbered + Level: 1 + Numbering Style: A, B, C, … + Start
at: 1 + Alignment: Left + Aligned at:  0.07" + Indent at: 
0.57", No widow/orphan control, Don't adjust space between
Latin and Asian text, Don't adjust space between Asian text
and numbers, Tab stops:  1.07", Left +  1.07", Left

26



 House Wide Policy & Procedure Manual 

 

SUBJECT:  

POLICY AND PROCEDURE SYSTEM 

SECTION:   

Leadership (LD) 

Page 2 of 4 

Printed copies are for reference only. Please refer to the electronic copy for the latest version. 

 

 

 

5. Policies may not be reproduced or distributed to parties outside of Sierra View Medical 

Center without authorization from the CEO. 

 

6. All policies will remain in effect until archived or until superseded by a policy revision of 

a later date. 

 

AFFECTED PERSONNEL/AREAS: ALL HOSPITAL PERSONNEL, STUDENTS, RESIDENTS, AND 

MEDICAL STAFF 

 

PROCEDURE: 

 

A. Create a New Policy & Archive a Policy 

 

1. Policy Owners are required to generate a Message within PowerDMS to the System 

Administrator requesting a New Policy or to Archive a Policy.  The following elements 

are to be provided to the System Administrator.  

 

a. New Policy: 

i. Policy Name 

ii. Policy Owner 

iii. Review Cycle 

iv. Workflow Reviewers  

v. Department Name 

 

Upon receipt of this Message, System Administrator will create the new policy, 

attach the Policy Word Template, and set up the Review Cycle and Workflow 

Template.  Communication will be sent to the Policy Owner informing them that 

setup is complete and to  proceed with policy development.  When the workflow 

steps are complete, final step - Board Approval, the policy will be published 

through the automated process. 

 

b. Archive Policy: 

i. Policy Name 

ii. Policy Owner 

iii. Document Folder Name 

iv. Detailed explanation for reason to Archive policy 

 

Upon receipt of this Message, System Administrator will generate an Archive 

Workflow and request approval by Policy & Procedure Committee.  Upon 

approval by Committee Members, System Administrator will Archive the policy.  

Although an archived policy will no longer be in the library of published policies, 

it will be stored in the system and can easily be accessed if needed. 

 

B. Policy Review & Approve Process 

 

Formatted: Indent: Left:  0.95",  No bullets or numbering

Formatted

Formatted

Formatted: Indent: Left:  1.5",  No bullets or numbering

Formatted

Formatted

Formatted: Indent: Left:  1.5",  No bullets or numbering

Formatted: Outline numbered + Level: 1 + Numbering
Style: A, B, C, … + Start at: 1 + Alignment: Left + Aligned at:
 0" + Indent at:  0.5"

Formatted: Indent: Left:  0.5"

27



 House Wide Policy & Procedure Manual 

 

SUBJECT:  

POLICY AND PROCEDURE SYSTEM 

SECTION:   

Leadership (LD) 

Page 3 of 4 

Printed copies are for reference only. Please refer to the electronic copy for the latest version. 

 

 

1. All policies stored in PowerDMS are automatically flagged for Review & Approval based on the 

policy’s review requirements (i.e., annually, every two years, etc. ).   Each policy has a set review 

period, but it is the responsibility of the policy oOwner to ensure this information is correct and 

that policies are reviewed when required. 

1.  

  

1. The Department Director or member of Senior Management responsible for creating the policy 

(the Owner) must develop a first draft of the policy.  Policy Owners also have the ability to designate 

someone else as the Writer of the policy, but the Owner must first create the document in Policy Tech (i.e. 

choose a template, type in the title, etc.) and then submit it to the Writer or submit it for review. 

 

2. When the draft policy is completed, it will be submitted for review and approval through the 

automated process.   

 

3. Reviewers will have the opportunity to approve the policy or offer revisions. If revisions are 

suggested, the policy will automatically be returned to the Owner. If no changes are needed, the policy 

will move on to the next person or group in the review process.  

 

4. Once the policy has made it through all steps of the review/approval process, it will be published 

in the policy library. (The system also offers the ability to publish the policy at a later date and can create 

quizzes to ensure reader comprehension of the policy.) 

 

B. Revise an Existing Policy 

 

1. The Owner of the policy must open the current version of the policy in PolicyTech. 

 

2. The Owner will click on the orange button at the top of the page that says “Create New Version.” 

Once the revisions have been made, the Owner will send the revised version of the policy through the 

review/approval process. The new version will remain in draft form while edits are made and the changes 

are sent through the review/approval process. The original version will still be accessible in the system 

while the new version goes through the review/approval process. 

 

3. Once the revised policy has made it through every step of the review/approval process, the new 

version will be published. The old version of the policy will automatically be archived in PolicyTech. 

 

C. Policy Review Process 

 

1. All policies stored in PolicyTech are automatically flagged for review based on that policy’s 

review requirements (i.e. annually, every two years, etc.). Each template has a set review period, but it is 

the responsibility of the policy Owner to ensure this information is correct and policies are reviewed when 

required.  

 

2. The Owner responsible for the policy will receive a notification when a policy is up for review. 

 

3. The Owner must review the policy and determine if revisions are required.  

 

Formatted: Numbered + Level: 1 + Numbering Style: 1, 2,
3, … + Start at: 1 + Alignment: Left + Aligned at:  0.25" +
Indent at:  0.5"

Formatted: Indent: Left:  0.7", Numbered + Level: 1 +
Numbering Style: 1, 2, 3, … + Start at: 1 + Alignment: Left +
Aligned at:  0.25" + Indent at:  0.5"

Formatted:  No bullets or numbering

Formatted: Indent: Left:  0"

Formatted:  No bullets or numbering

Formatted: Indent: Left:  0"

Formatted:  No bullets or numbering

Formatted: Indent: Left:  0"

Formatted:  No bullets or numbering

Formatted:  No bullets or numbering

Formatted:  No bullets or numbering

Formatted: Indent: Left:  0"

Formatted:  No bullets or numbering

Formatted:  No bullets or numbering

Formatted:  No bullets or numbering

Formatted: Normal, Tab stops: Not at  0.5"

Formatted: Normal,  No bullets or numbering, Tab stops:
Not at  0.5" +  3" +  6"

Formatted: Normal, Indent: Left:  0", Tab stops: Not at 

Formatted: Normal,  No bullets or numbering, Tab stops:
Not at  0.5" +  3" +  6"

Formatted: Normal, Indent: Left:  0", Tab stops: Not at 

Formatted: Normal,  No bullets or numbering, Tab stops:
Not at  0.5" +  3" +  6"

Formatted: Normal, Tab stops: Not at  0.5" +  3" +  6"

28



 House Wide Policy & Procedure Manual 

 

SUBJECT:  

POLICY AND PROCEDURE SYSTEM 

SECTION:   

Leadership (LD) 

Page 4 of 4 

Printed copies are for reference only. Please refer to the electronic copy for the latest version. 

 

 

2. If revisions are required, the Owner must make the necessary revisions and send the policy 

through the automated review/approval process. 

 

2. All policies require a generation of New Draft from the published version.  Policy Owner will 

assign the Workflow template to the Draft and proceed with the Review & Approval process.  

Upon completion of the Final Step, the New Policy will be published and the previous version 

will be archived. 

 

3. If no revisions are required, the Owner must “Submit for Review” and place “No 

Revision Necessary” in the notes section.  

 

 

 

D. Archive a Policy 

 

1. Policy Owners are also responsible for requesting archive of any policies that are no 

longer relevant. Although an archived policy will no longer be in the library of published 

policies, it will be stored in the system and can easily be accessed if needed.  The policy 

owner may make a request for archive by submitting the policy for review with a note 

that archive of the policy is being requested.  Policy & Procedure Committee will 

approve or deny the policy owner’s requests for archive.     

 

 
References: 

PowerDMS Lesson 2 Training Document 

  

Formatted: Normal,  No bullets or numbering, Tab stops:
Not at  0.5" +  3" +  6"

Formatted: Normal, Indent: Left:  0", Tab stops: Not at 
0.5" +  3" +  6"

Formatted: Numbered + Level: 1 + Numbering Style: 1, 2,
3, … + Start at: 1 + Alignment: Left + Aligned at:  0.25" +
Indent at:  0.5"

Formatted: List Paragraph,  No bullets or numbering, Tab
stops: Not at  0.5" +  3" +  6"

Formatted: Indent: Left:  0.57",  No bullets or numbering

Formatted: Font: Bold

29

https://powerdms.com/docs/1823618


    House Wide Policy & Procedure Manual 

 

SUBJECT:  

ROLE & RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE 

PRESIDENT/CEO  

SECTION:   

Leadership (LD) 

Page 1 of 2 

Printed copies are for reference only. Please refer to the electronic copy for the latest version. 

 

 

PURPOSE: 

 

To define the responsibilities and role of the Sierra View Medical Center President/CEO. 

 

POLICY: 

  

1. The duties and the responsibilities of the President/CEO are defined in the Bylaws and the formal 

President/CEO Job Description.  The Sierra View Local Health Care District Board of Directors 

shall have the authority to select, employ, control and discharge the President/CEO, who shall be 

its direct executive representative in the overall management of the hospital.   

 

The President/CEO shall be given the necessary authority, and be held responsible for the 

administration of the Hospital, in all its activities and departments, subject only to such policies 

as may be adopted and such orders as may be issued by the Board, or any of its committees to 

which it has delegated power for such action.   

 

The President/CEO shall be responsible for the implementation of policies adopted by the Board 

of Directors.  By working with standing and special committees of the Board and committees of 

the Medical Staff of the Hospital, the President/CEO is to participate in the development of 

policies which provide the framework for high quality patient care.  

 

The President/CEO shall act as the “duly authorized representative” of the Board in all matters in 

which the Board has not formally designated some other person for that specific purpose.  

Individual members of the Board shall direct concerns they have regarding operations or 

personnel matters to the President/CEO.  The authorities and duties of the President/CEO shall 

be: 

 

a. To provide for the recruitment, retention and when applicable, the discharge of all 

employees authorized by the Board, and pursuant to any regulation that may be adopted 

by the Board. 

 

b. Maintain District records and minutes of Board and Committee meetings.  To submit 

regularly to the Board periodic reports showing the services performed and the financial 

activities of the Hospital. 

 

c. To attend all meetings of the Board and its committees when required. 

 

d. To identify a nurse leader at the executive level who will actively participate in decision-

making. 

 

e. To perform any other duty that may be necessary in the best interests of the Hospital. 

 

f. To serve as the liaison officer and channel of communications for all official 

communications between the Board or any of its committees, the Medical Staff and the 

30



    House Wide Policy & Procedure Manual 

 

SUBJECT:  

ROLE & RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE 

PRESIDENT/CEO  

SECTION:   

Leadership (LD) 

Page 2 of 2 

Printed copies are for reference only. Please refer to the electronic copy for the latest version. 

 

 

personnel of the District.  Providing periodic reports to the Board and to the Medical 

Staff(s) on the overall activities of the District and the Hospital(s) or other facilities, as 

appropriate, as well as pertinent federal, state and local developments that effect the 

operation of District Facilities. 

 

g. To provide information and support systems for the organization. 

 

h. To provide for and supervise all business affairs such as records of financial transactions, 

collections and accounts, and purchase and issuance of supplies and to ensure that all 

funds are collected and expended to the best possible advantage. 

 

i. To see that all physical properties of the district are kept in a good state of repair and 

operating condition. 

 

j. Provide the Board and its committees with adequate staff support. 

 

k. Maintenance of adequate insurance or self-insurance covering the physical properties and 

activities of the District. 

 

l. Designate other individuals by name and position who are, in the order of succession, 

authorized to act for the Sierra View Local Health Care District during any period of 

absence. 

 

m. Summarily to suspend, in accordance with Article VIII of the Bylaws, the Medical Staff 

Bylaws and applicable law, all or any portion of the clinical privileges of any Practitioner 

whenever, in his/her opinion, such suspension is necessary in the best interest of patient 

care and immediate suspension pursuant to Medical Staff Bylaws, is not a feasible 

solution to the problem presented. 

 

n. Act as a prosecuting authority for the District under the California False Claims Act as 

the local government official charged with investigating, filing and conducting civil legal 

proceedings on behalf of or in the name of the District, using private or government 

counsel as may be appropriate.  

 

o. Such other duties as the Board may from time to time direct. 

 

REFERENCES:  

 

• Sierra View Local Health Care District Bylaws, Article VII, Section 7.5-7.5.12 

 

• Health & Safety Code Section 32121.5 (n.d.). Retrieved from https://codes.findlaw.com/ca/health-

and-safety-code/hsc-sect-32121-5.html. 

 

• Title 22, Division 5, Article 7 

31

https://codes.findlaw.com/ca/health-and-safety-code/hsc-sect-32121-5.html
https://codes.findlaw.com/ca/health-and-safety-code/hsc-sect-32121-5.html


    House Wide Policy & Procedure Manual 

 

SUBJECT:  

STRATEGIC PLAN  

SECTION:   

Leadership (LD) 

Page 1 of 1 

Printed copies are for reference only. Please refer to the electronic copy for the latest version. 

 

 

PURPOSE: 

 

To delineate responsibility for the Strategic Plan at Sierra View Medical Center (SVMC). 

 

POLICY: 

 

1. In conjunction with the Board of Directors, the President and Chief Executive Officer (CEO) will 

accept the leadership role in the preparation, development, and implementation of the Strategic 

Plan for Sierra View Medical Center. 

  

2. Strategic planning will include definition of mission, vision, and values for the hospital and 

creating strategic, operational, programmatic and other plans and policies to achieve the mission 

and vision. 

 

3. A copy of the strategic plan will be kept in the Administration offices. 

 

4. Any and all data required for planning will be made available, as appropriate, to those involved in 

the strategic planning process. 

 

5. The strategic plan is reviewed by the President/CEO and Senior Leadership, in conjunction with 

the Board of Directors, at least annually. 

 

6. The Structure of the Strategic Planning Group may include the Board of Directors, Senior 

Leadership, Physicians, members of the community, and selected employees. 

 

REFERENCES:     

 

•  The Joint Commission (20254).  Hospital accreditation standards.  Joint Commission Resources. Oak 

Brook, IL. 

 

 

32



House Wide Policy & Procedure Manual 

SUBJECT: 
SUBPOENAS, SUMMONS & COMPLAINTS, 

HANDLING OFRequests to Interview 

Patients by Law Enforcement and  

Subpoena Handling 

SECTION: 

Management of Information (IM) 

Page 1 of 2 

 

Formatted: Font: 9 pt

Printed copies are for reference only. Please refer to the electronic copy for the latest version. 
 

PURPOSE: 

 

• To outline steps to be taken when in receipt of a subpoena, summons or complaint. 

 

• To provide guidelines for appropriate handling of patient citations or interviews with law 

enforcement personnel.  

 

• To reduce the risk regarding the patient’s condition.  

 

• To ensure appropriate orientation of forensic law enforcement personnel to the hospital. 

 

• To ensure compliance with SB81, 2025, which restricts the sharing of medical information and 

limits access to non-public areas of healthcare facilities by immigration enforcement agencies 

without judicial authorization.   

 

DEFINITIONS: 

 

Complaint: A formal statement initiating a lawsuit by specifying the facts and legal grounds for the 

relief sought. 

 

Subpoena: A writ or court order directed to a person requiring their attendance at a particular time 

and place to testify. 

 

Subpoena duces tecum: An order issued by a court at the request of one of the parties to a suit that 

compels a person to appear in court or to a deposition and to bring any relevant or specifically requested 

documents that are under their control. 

 

Medical Information:  As defined under California Civil Code statute 56.05, now includes immigration 

status and place of birth when maintained by a healthcare provider 

 

Non-Public Area: Any location within a facility (including all SVMC buildings) not accessible to the 

general public (E.G., OR, IR, ED, inpatient units, clinic rooms, registration booths, clinical workrooms, 

areas where physical therapy and occupational therapy may occur). 

 

Public Areas:  Any area where the general public can access such as lobby, waiting areas, café, public 

bathrooms. 

 

Immigration Enforcement: Any official action undertaken by local, state, or federal agents for civil or 

criminal immigration law enforcement (E.G. ICE, DHS, Border Patrol). 

 

Judicial Warrant: A warrant signed by a judge or magistrate.  Administrative warrants (e.g. ICE Warrant 

(Form I200/I205) are not sufficient.  ICE warrants, for example, do not authorize entry into non-public 

healthcare facility areas. 

 

POLICY: 

 

Sierra View Medical Center (SVMC) will comply with the California Code of Civil Procedure, whereby 

ensuring the appropriate receipt and response to all appropriately served court orders and requests. 

 

1. Orders naming Sierra View (Medical Center), (District Hospital), (Local Health Care District): 

 

33



House Wide Policy & Procedure Manual 

SUBJECT: 
SUBPOENAS, SUMMONS & COMPLAINTS, 

HANDLING OFRequests to Interview 

Patients by Law Enforcement and  

Subpoena Handling 

SECTION: 

Management of Information (IM) 

Page 2 of 2 

 

Formatted: Font: 9 pt

Only designated employees may accept, from a process server, a subpoena, summons or 

complaint. The following are considered to be designated to receive subpoenas, summons or 

complaints between the hours of 0800 and 1630, Monday through Friday: 

 

a. Human Resources may receive court orders for production of documents related to the 

personnel file of a former or current employee. Refer to Human Resource Policy & 

Procedure Manual, Employee’s Right to Privacy. 

 

b. The Payroll Department may receive court orders for payroll deductions (support 

payments, garnishments, etc.). 

 

c. Health Information Management (HIM) may receive court orders for production of 

medical records or Subpoena duces tecum. Refer to House-wide Policy & Procedures 

Manual, Confidentiality. 

d. Risk Management will be called to review and possibly receive all other subpoenas, 

summons or complaints. When applicable, Risk Management will subsequently contact 

the department or individual involved. 

2. Physician approval will be obtained prior to law enforcement officers issuing citations or 

conducting patient interviews. The hospital does not routinely care for in-custody patients. If 

this occurs, law enforcement personnel will be oriented to the hospital’s protocols and 

procedures. 

All Immigration enforcement officers will immediately be referred to the RISK or Compliance 

department and not allowed into non-public areas.   

 

3. Orders naming individual employees: 

 

a. Process servers attempting to serve an employee of the District, shall be directed to 

Human Resources. Human Resources will determine if the employee is working and 

request the employee present to Human Resources to receive the document. 

 

b. If the employee is not available, the process server may choose to leave the document 

(California Code of Civil Proceedings 415.20). At this time the process server should be 

informed that there is no guarantee of the employee being on schedule and as such they 

may choose to serve the employee at their place of residence. 

 

c. If the court order is left with Human Resources, documented attempts will be made to 

inform the employee. 

 

d. If the employee does not respond within five (5) days of receipt, Risk Management 

should be contacted. 

 

4. Orders naming non-employees (contractors/physicians): 

 

a. Sierra View Medical Center will not take receipt of any orders naming non- 

employees/contractors. If such are left by a process server, Risk Management should be 

contacted. 

 

5. When a designated representative is not available, Risk Management should be contacted. 

 

 

34



House Wide Policy & Procedure Manual 

SUBJECT: 
SUBPOENAS, SUMMONS & COMPLAINTS, 

HANDLING OFRequests to Interview 

Patients by Law Enforcement and  

Subpoena Handling 

SECTION: 

Management of Information (IM) 

Page 3 of 2 

 

Formatted: Font: 9 pt

 

AFFECTED PERSONNEL/AREAS: 

 

GOVERNING BOARD, MEDICAL STAFF, ALL HOSPITAL EMPLOYEES, VOLUNTEERS, STUDENTS, 

INSTRUCTORS, VENDORS  

 

PROCEDURE: 

 

Immigration Enforcement Officers 

 

• Initial encounter – Staff must ask for official identification and notify manager/Risk/Compliance 

Leadership immediately. 

 

• Warrant Verification – Contact Security to verify the warrant; the officer must wait in a public area 

 

• Authorized Access – Only a valid judicial warrant (signed by a judge) or court order grants access.  

Administrative ICE warrants are insufficient. 

 

• If no valid warrant – Deny access and direct agents as to the determination.  Contact the AOC to 

advise of the situation.  Call in local law enforcement if the immigration agents are not complying. 

 

Other Law Enforcement Officers 

 

1. All Law enforcement officers requesting permission to interview or serve papers to a patient in the 

hospital will be referred to Risk Management.  

 

2. All Law enforcement officers must provide proper identification. 

 

3. Law enforcement officers will request permission to interview any patient. 

 

a. Applicable to all patients regardless of the patient’s relationship with the police (i.e., 

arrested, under investigation, victim, witness). 

 

b. Not applicable to patients who are receiving treatment for psychiatric disorders, alcohol or 

drug abuse, since such patients are accorded special statutory protection. 

 

4. If the patient is listed in the Hospital Directory, law enforcement will be provided with the 

patient’s room number and will be permitted to visit the patient.   

 

5. Any patient who has “Opted Out” of the Hospital Directory will have that choice honored.  

Hospital personnel will use the standard script of “I have no patient listed in the Hospital Directory 

with that name.  Federal Medical Privacy Laws permit us to disclose only the information in the 

Hospital Directory.”  

 

6. Law enforcement officers will be oriented to policy regarding citations or interviews with patients 

by a member of the hospital’s Risk Management staff.  

 

7. The hospital will contact the physician and inform them of the request by law enforcement and 

seek physician’s input as to medical conditions of such interaction. The physician must act 

consistently with their separate duties to protect the patient’s therapeutic condition and hospital 

privacy. 

 

35



House Wide Policy & Procedure Manual 

SUBJECT: 
SUBPOENAS, SUMMONS & COMPLAINTS, 

HANDLING OFRequests to Interview 

Patients by Law Enforcement and  

Subpoena Handling 

SECTION: 

Management of Information (IM) 

Page 4 of 2 

 

Formatted: Font: 9 pt

8. Law enforcement officers presenting with a Warrant or Subpoena shall be referred to Risk 

Management, Administration and/or the House Supervisor.    

 

Minimum Instructions Include: 

 

• Patient’s physician, in collaboration with law enforcement officers, will write specific instructions to 

hospital staff for each individual under legal or correctional restrictions. 

 

• Risk Management will notified and will review the instructions for compliance with the California 

Penal Code. 

 

• Use of restraints for non-clinical purposes. 

 

• Impositions of disciplinary restrictions 

 

• Anticipated length of stay 

 

• Restrictions of rights 

 

• Plan for discharge and continuing care 

 

Patient’s Consents to Law Officer Interview: 

 

• If a competent patient consents to cooperate with law enforcement officers, the patient’s desire should 

be respected. 

 

• Patient will be informed of any possible adverse medical consequences at the direction of the physician 

 

• The physician or nursing staff will document the patient’s understanding of medical consequences in 

the patient’s medical record. 

 

• If it is medically inappropriate to conduct an interview, but patient wants to cooperate with law 

enforcement officers, hospital personnel will coordinate the transmission of information from patient 

to the officers. 

 

Patient Objects to Interview: 

 

• The hospital may object to non-consensual interrogations, but may not obstruct justice, which may 

include interview / interrogation. 

• Hospital personnel should never attempt to physically prevent law enforcement officers from 

interrogating a patient. 

 

• When a law enforcement officer insists on interrogating a patient, despite a warning that it may 

adversely affect the patient’s medical condition, the hospital will contact the law enforcement agency 

for assistance. 

 

• If interview / interrogation is conducted, hospital personnel may monitor as appropriate to protect 

therapeutic interest of the patient.  Law enforcement shall honor patient’s request to have hospital 

personnel present.   

 

• If law enforcement officers do not permit the presence of hospital personnel, despite the patient’s 

desire to have them present, an objection should be clearly stated and recorded in the patient’s medical 

36



House Wide Policy & Procedure Manual 

SUBJECT: 
SUBPOENAS, SUMMONS & COMPLAINTS, 

HANDLING OFRequests to Interview 

Patients by Law Enforcement and  

Subpoena Handling 

SECTION: 

Management of Information (IM) 

Page 5 of 2 

 

Formatted: Font: 9 pt

record and the Commanding Officer of the law enforcement shall be notified by nursing personnel, 

Risk Management, Administration and/or House Supervisor. 

 

• If the patient wants to exclude hospital personnel from interview / interrogation, it should be respected. 

 

Release of Medical Information: 

 

The California Medical Information Act (CMIA) establishes more stringent limits on disclosures to law 

enforcement than does HIPAA.  CMIA prohibits the hospital from disclosing medical information without 

patient authorization unless the disclosure is compelled by:  

 

• A subpoena or summons for release of medical information must be accompanied by, or be issued as a 

result of a court order.   

 

• A search warrant lawfully issued to a governmental law enforcement agency.   

  

• Senate Bill 497 prohibits the disclosure of medical information related to gender-affirming health 

care or mental health care in response to subpoenas, civil actions, or criminal actions initiated by laws from 

other states that interfere with an individual’s right to seek or receive such care.  It also prohibits healthcare 

providers from cooperating with out-of-state authorities or law enforcement agencies seeking information 

related to gender-affirming care, unless required by federal law or a valid court order.  Additionally, the 

DOJ is restricted from sharing data related to prescription drug monitoring across state lines for 

investigations based on laws that interfere with access to gender-affirming health care. 
 

REFERENCE: 

 

• California Code of Civil Procedure (1985.3(B) (2)) 

 

• Policy – Prisoners / Wards of Legal System Care of 

 

• Policy – Subpoenas – handling of 

 

• SVMC Updated Privacy Notice (English & Spanish versions) 

 

• Brochure – Security Services Forensic Handout / Emergency Terms 

 

• 45 C.F.R. § 160.203 

 

• 45 C.F.R. § 164.510(a) 

 

• Civil Code § 56.16 

 

• Penal Code §§ 69, 148 

 

• Penal Code, Part Two, Title 12 Chapter 3.5, Section 1453 

 

• California Senate Bill 81 (Arrequin, 2025). 

https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/billTextClient.xhtml?bill_id=202520260SB81\ 

 

• California Civil Code, statute 56.05 (CMIA).  

https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=CIV&sectionNum=56.

05 

 

Formatted: List Paragraph,  No bullets or numbering

37

https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/billTextClient.xhtml?bill_id=202520260SB81
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=CIV&sectionNum=56.05
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=CIV&sectionNum=56.05


House Wide Policy & Procedure Manual 

SUBJECT: 
SUBPOENAS, SUMMONS & COMPLAINTS, 

HANDLING OFRequests to Interview 

Patients by Law Enforcement and  

Subpoena Handling 

SECTION: 

Management of Information (IM) 

Page 6 of 2 

 

Formatted: Font: 9 pt

• HIPAA Privacy Rule, 45 CFR 164.  https://www.ecfr.gov/current/title-45/subtitle-A/suchapter-

C/part-164?toc=1 

 

• National Immigration Law Center, 2025.  https://www.nilc.org/resources/warrants-and-subpoenas-

facts/ 

 

 

 

CROSS REFERENCES: 

 

• Human Resource Policy & Procedure Manual, Employee’s Right to Privacy 

 

• House-wide Policy & Procedures Manual, Protection of Patient Privacy 

 

• House-wide Policy & Procedures Manual, Release of Patient Information 

38

https://www.ecfr.gov/current/title-45/subtitle-A/suchapter-C/part-164?toc=1
https://www.ecfr.gov/current/title-45/subtitle-A/suchapter-C/part-164?toc=1
https://powerdms.com/link/sierraview/document/?id=1578437
https://powerdms.com/link/sierraview/document/?id=1578280
https://powerdms.com/link/sierraview/document/?id=1578430


 
     

            POLICIES APPROVED BY THE MEDICAL EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE

            AGENDA
             CONSENT





































































































































































































































MEETING
MINUTES

MINUTES FROM PREVIOUS MEETING SUBMITTED FOR APPROVAL



 

  1 

 

MEETING MINUTES 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS ANNUAL MEETING 

SIERRA VIEW LOCAL HEALTH CARE DISTRICT 

 

The monthly January 27, 2026 at 5:00 P.M. in the Sierra View Medical Center Board Room,  

465 West Putnam Avenue, Porterville, California  

 

Call to Order: Chairman Lomeli called the meeting to order at 5:00 p.m. 

 

 Board Attendance:  

• Liberty Lomeli, Chair  - Present 

• Bindusagar Reddy, Vice Chair  - Present 

• Areli Martinez, Secretary – Present 

• Hans Kashyap, Director – Arrived at 5:42 p.m. 

• Martha A. Flores, Director - Present 

   

 Others Present: Donna Hefner, President/Chief Executive Officer, Craig McDonald, Chief 

Financial Officer, Melissa Crippen, Vice President of Quality and Regulatory Affairs, Ron 

Wheaton, Vice President of Professional Services & Physician Recruitment, Brandy Irwin, 

Chief Nursing Officer, Tracy Canales, Vice President of Human Resources and Marketing, 

Kim Pryor-DeShazo, Director of Marketing, Crystal Lucas, Director of Food and Nutrition, 

Silvia Robert, Director of Care Integration, Gary Wilbur, Administrative Director of 

General Services, Jerome Alcoba, Manager of Patient Safety and Risk,  Rosalva Gonzalez, 

Infection Prevention Manager, Jennifer Regalado, Compliance Privacy Manager, Alex 

Reed-Krase, Legal Counsel, Harpreet Sandhu, Chief of Staff 

 

I. Approval of Agenda:   

 

Meeting time under announcements for the group photo of the Board will change from 

4:30pm to 5:45pm, and resolution number on the agenda for Business Item G will be 

corrected to 12-16-2025/02.  Chair LOMELI inquired if there was a motion to approve the 

agenda. Director FLORES moved to approve the agenda with the modifications mentioned, 

the motion was seconded by Vice Chair REDDY.  The motion was carried with the 

following vote:  

 

FLORES Yes 

KASHYAP  Absent 

MARTINEZ Yes 

REDDY Yes 

LOMELI Yes 

 

II. Closed Session: Board adjourned Open Session and went into Closed Session at 5:01 p.m. 

to discuss the following items: 

 

A. Pursuant to Evidence Code Sections 1156 and 1157.7; Health and Safety Code 

Section 32106(b): Chief of Staff Report. 



Board of Directors – Minutes 

January 27, 2026 

 

2 

 

 

1. General Update; 

2. Report on Peer Review/Credentials  

 

B. Pursuant to Evidence Code Sections 1156 and 1157.7; Health and Safety Code Section 

32106(b): Quality Division Update: 

 

C. Pursuant to Gov. Code Section 54962; Health and Safety Code Section 32106(c): 

Discussion Regarding Trade Secrets Pertaining to Services and Facilities. Estimated date 

of disclosure December 1, 2026.  

 

Closed Session Items D & E were deferred to the conclusion of Open Session as there was not 

enough time for discussion prior to Open Session’s scheduled start time.   

 

III. Open Session: Chair LOMELI adjourned Closed Session at 5:33 p.m., reconvening in Open 

Session at 5:33 p.m.  

 

Pursuant to Gov. Code Section 54957.1; Action(s) taken as a result of discussion(s) in 

Closed Session.  

    

A. Chief of Staff Report: 

 

1. General Report 

Recommended Action: Information only; no action taken  

 

2. Report on Peer Review/Credentials 

Following review and discussion, Director FLORES made a motion to 

approve the Quality of Care/Peer Review/Credentials as presented. The 

motion was seconded by Director MARTINEZ. The motion was carried 

with the following vote by the Board:   

 

FLORES Yes 

KASHYAP  Absent 

MARTINEZ Yes 

REDDY Yes 

LOMELI Yes 

 

B. Quality Division Update  

 

1. Quality Division Report 

Following review and discussion, Vice Chair REDDY made a motion to 

approve the Quality Division Update as presented. The motion was 

seconded by Director FLORES. The motion was carried with the following 

vote by the Board:  

 

FLORES Yes 

KASHYAP  Absent 



Board of Directors – Minutes 

January 27, 2026 

 

3 

 

MARTINEZ Yes 

REDDY Yes 

LOMELI Yes 

 

C. Discussion Regarding Trade Secrets Pertaining to Services and Facilities 

Information Only: No Action Taken 

 

IV. Public Comments 

None 

 

V. Consent Agenda 

The Medical Staff Policies/Procedures/Protocols/Plans and Hospital 

Policies/Procedures/Protocols/Plans were presented for approval (Consent Agenda 

attached to the file copy of these Minutes).  Following review and discussion, it was 

moved by Director MARTINEZ, seconded by Director FLORES, and carried to approve 

the Consent Agenda as presented.   The vote of the Board is as follows: 

 

FLORES Yes 

KASHYAP  Absent 

MARTINEZ Yes 

REDDY Yes 

LOMELI Yes 

 

VI. Approval of Minutes:  

 

A. Following review and discussion, it was moved by Director FLORES and seconded 

by Vice Chair REDDY to approve the December 16, 2025 Minutes of the Regular 

Board Meeting as presented. The motion carried and the vote of the Board is as 

follows: 

 

FLORES Yes 

KASHYAP  Absent 

MARTINEZ Yes 

REDDY Yes 

LOMELI Yes 

 

VII. Business Items 

 

A. Award of Public Bid for Parking Lot Resurfacing 

 

Following review and discussion Central Valley Asphalt was identified as the 

lowest qualifying bid received. Director MARTINEZ made a motion to approve 

the lowest qualifying bid, seconded by Director FLORES and carried to approve.  

The vote of the Board is as follows: 

 

FLORES Yes 

KASHYAP Absent 



Board of Directors – Minutes 

January 27, 2026 

 

4 

 

MARTINEZ Yes 

REDDY Yes 

LOMELI Yes 

 

B. Sierra View Foundation Check Presentation 

Foundation Chair Debbie Landers presented Sierra View Medical Center with a 

$250,000 contribution in support of expanding orthopedic care for the 

community. The funds, raised through donor sponsors, community partners and 

members, will assist with the purchase of the Stryker Mako robotic system. This 

technology will enhance SVMC’s ability to provide minimally invasive total hip 

and knee replacement procedures locally.  

C. December 2025 Financials 

 

Craig McDonald, CFO presented the Financials for December 2025.  

   

Following review and discussion, it was moved by Vice Chair REDDY, seconded 

by Director KASHYAP and carried to approve the December Financials as 

presented.  The vote of the Board is as follows: 

 

FLORES Yes 

KASHYAP Absent 

MARTINEZ Yes 

REDDY Yes 

LOMELI Yes 

 

▪ Director Kashyap arrived to the meeting at 5:42pm towards the end of the monthly 

financial report.   

 

▪ A brief recess was taken at 5:53 pm for the Board to take a professional group photo. 

 

▪ At 5:59pm the meeting resumed with Chair Lomeli, Vice Chair Reddy and Director Flores. 

 

D. Investment Report – Quarter Ending December 31, 2025 

 

Craig McDonald presented the Investment Report  

   

Following review and discussion, it was moved by Vice Chair REDDY, seconded 

by Director FLORES and carried to approve the Quarterly Investment Report as 

presented.  The vote of the Board is as follows: 

 

Director Martinez returned to the Board Room at 6:00pm.  

 

FLORES Yes 

KASHYAP Absent 

MARTINEZ Abstain 



Board of Directors – Minutes 

January 27, 2026 

 

5 

 

REDDY Yes 

LOMELI Yes 

 

E. Capital Report – Quarter Ending December 31, 2025 

 

Craig McDonald presented the quarterly capital report.  

   

Following review and discussion, it was moved by Vice Chair REDDY, seconded 

by Director FLORES and carried to approve the Quarterly Capital Report as 

presented.  The vote of the Board is as follows: 

 

FLORES Yes 

KASHYAP Absent 

MARTINEZ Yes 

REDDY Yes 

LOMELI Yes 

 

F. Annual Appointments 

 

1.  Food and Dietetic Services Director-Crystal Lucas 

 

Ron Wheaton, Vice President of Physician Recruitment and Professional 

Services presented credentials for Crystal Lucas, Director of Food and 

Nutrition. 

 

Following review and discussion, it was moved by Vice Chair REDDY, 

seconded by Director MARTINEZ and carried to approve Crystal Lucas as 

the Food and Dietetic Services Director as presented.  The vote of the Board 

is as follows: 

 

Director Kashyap returned to the Board Room at 6:03pm 

 

FLORES Yes 

KASHYAP Abstain 

MARTINEZ Yes 

REDDY Yes 

LOMELI Yes 

 

2. Environmental Safety/Security Officer- Gary Wilbur 

 

Craig McDonald, Vice President and Chief Financial Officer presented 

credentials for Gary Wilbur, Administrative Director of General Services.  

 

Following review and discussion, it was moved by Director FLORES, 

seconded by Director MARTINEZ and carried to approve Gary Wilbur as 

the Environmental Safety/Security Officer as presented.  The vote of the 

Board is as follows: 



Board of Directors – Minutes 

January 27, 2026 

 

6 

 

 

FLORES Yes 

KASHYAP Yes 

MARTINEZ Yes 

REDDY Yes 

LOMELI Yes 

 

3. Patient Safety Officer-Jerome Acoba 

 

Melissa Crippen, VP of Quality and Regulatory Affairs, presented 

credentials for Jerome Acoba, Patient Safety Manager.  

 

Following review and discussion, it was moved by Director FLORES, 

seconded by Director MARTINEZ and carried to approve Jerome Alcoba 

as the Patient Safety Officer as presented.  The vote of the Board is as 

follows: 

 

FLORES Yes 

KASHYAP Yes 

MARTINEZ Yes 

REDDY Yes 

LOMELI Yes 

 

4.  Infection Control Officer- Rosalva Gonzalez 

 

Melissa Creppin, Vice President of Quality and Regulatory Affairs 

presented credentials for Rosalva Gonzalez, Infection Prevention Manager.   

 

Following review and discussion, it was moved by Vice Chairman REDDY, 

seconded by Director KASHYAP and carried to approve Rosalva Gonzalez 

as the Infection Control Officer as presented.  The vote of the Board is as 

follows: 

 

FLORES Yes 

KASHYAP Yes 

MARTINEZ Yes 

REDDY Yes 

LOMELI Yes 

 

G. Ratification of Resolution 12-16-2025/02 Appointing CFO as Treasurer of the 

Board 

   

Following review and discussion, Director Kashyap made a motion to approve the 

ratification of Resolution 12-16-2025/02, appointing Sierra View Medical Center 

CFO as Treasurer of the Board, seconded by Vice Chair REDDY.  The vote of the 

Board is as follows: 

 



Board of Directors – Minutes 

January 27, 2026 

 

7 

 

FLORES Yes 

KASHYAP Yes 

MARTINEZ Yes 

REDDY Yes 

LOMELI Yes 

 

H. Board Self Evaluation and 2026 Goals According to 7.2 Bylaw Requirement 

Information Only; No Action Taken 

  

VIII. SVLHCD Board Chair Report 

 

No Report Given 

 

IX. CEO Report 

• Brandy Irwin has been appointed as Vice President of Patient Care Services and Chief 

Nursing Officer. 

• Sierra View Medical Center earned a Gold designation from the California Department of 

Public Health for its Antimicrobial Stewardship Program, recognizing excellence in 

responsible antibiotic use and infection prevention efforts. 

• The SVMC End of Year Report is now available on the hospital’s website. 

• SVMC welcomed its New Year’s Baby, delivered at 9:57 a.m. on January 1. The 

newborn weighed 8 pounds, 13 ounces and measured 20.5 inches long. 

• Employee of the Month recognition was awarded to: 

o Tyson Harness, Senior Data Analyst 

o Elvia, Infection Prevention RN 

• The Awards and Recognition Committee hosted a hot chocolate bar as a festive moment 

of appreciation for staff. 

• Congratulations and best wishes were extended to retiring employees: 

o Olga, Patient Registration Clerk, retiring after 30 years of service 

o Gloria, Regulatory and Quality RN, retiring after more than two decades of 

service 

• Dr. Simon Kim, M.D., author of Dream Along Anesthesia Adventures, generously 

donated 100 copies of his book for pediatric surgery patients. 

• The next Blood Drive will be held on Thursday, February 19. 

• CEO Donna Hefner attended a Central Valley healthcare roundtable at Kern Medical in 

Bakersfield. The event was hosted by Congressman David Valadao and Congressman 

Vince Fong and welcomed Centers for Medicare & Medicaid Services Administrator Dr. 

Mehmet Oz. 

 

X. Announcements:  

Regular Board of Directors Meeting – January 27, 2026, at 5:00 p.m. 

 

XI. Closed Session: Board adjourned Open Session at 6:25 p.m., reconvening in Closed 

Session at 6:25 p.m. to discuss the following items:  

 



Board of Directors – Minutes 

January 27, 2026 

 

8 

 

D. Pursuant to Gov. Code Section 54962; Health and Safety Code Section 32106(c): 

Discussion Regarding Trade Secrets Pertaining to Services and Strategic Planning. 

Estimated date of disclosure December 1, 2026.   

 

E. Pursuant To Gov. Code Section 54956.9(D)(2), Conference With Legal Counsel 

About Recent Work Product (B)(1) And (B)(3)(F): Significant Exposure To 

Litigation; Privileged Communication (1 Items).   

 

XII. Open Session: Chairman REDDY adjourned Closed Session at 7:04 p.m., reconvening in 

Open Session at 7:04 p.m.  

 

D. Discussion Regarding Trade Secrets Pertaining to Services and Strategic Planning 

 Information Only; No Action Taken 

 

E. Conference with Legal Counsel 

Information Only; No Action Taken 

 

XIII. Adjournment 

 

The meeting was adjourned at 7:05 p.m. 

 

 

Respectfully submitted,  

 

 

 

Areli Martinez 

Secretary  

SVLHCD Board of Directors 

 

AM: trv 

 

 



FINANCIALS
FINANCIAL REPORTS FROM THE PREVIOUS MONTH



FINANCIAL PACKAGE
Jan-26

SIERRA VIEW MEDICAL CENTER

BOARD PACKAGE

Pages
Statistics 1-2
Balance Sheet 3-4
Income Statement 5
Statement of Cash Flow 6
Monthly Cash Receipts 7



Increase/
Over/ Over/ Fiscal 25 (Decrease)

  Statistic Actual Budget (Under) % Var. Actual Budget (Under) % Var. YTD Jan-25 % Change
Utilization

SNF Patient Days
Total -              -                -             0.0% 93                 -               93                 0.0% 127                 (34)                  -26.8%

Medi-Cal -              -                -             0.0% 93                 -               93                 0.0% 127                 (34)                  -26.8%

Sub-Acute Patient Days
Total 1,072          1,000            72              7.2% 7,199            7,391           (192)              -2.6% 7,062              137                 1.9%

Medi-Cal 514             476               38              7.9% 3,304            3,698           (394)              -10.6% 3,533              (229)                -6.5%

Acute Patient Days 1,688          1,882            (194)           -10.3% 11,478          11,814         (336)              -2.8% 11,679            (201)                -1.7%
Acute Discharges 483             499               (16)             -3.2% 3,218            3,132           86                 2.7% 3,132              86                   2.7%

 Medicare 206             201               5                2.5% 1,185            1,227           (42)                -3.4% 1,227              (42)                  -3.4%
Medi-Cal 207             228               (21)             -9.2% 1,566            1,484           82                 5.5% 1,484              82                   5.5%
Contract 67               66                 1                1.5% 440               401              39                 9.7% 401                 39                   9.7%

Other 3                 4                   (1)               -25% 27                 20                7                   35.0% 20                   7                     35.0%

Average Length of Stay 3.49            3.77              (0.28)          -7.3% 3.57              3.77             (0.21)             -5.4% 3.73                (0.16)               -4.3%

Newborn Patient Days
Medi-Cal 159             173               (14)             -8.1% 1,163            1,121           42                 3.8% 1,081              82                   7.6%

Other 38               33                 5                15.2% 303               228              75                 32.7% 268                 35                   13.1%
Total 197             206               (9)               -4.4% 1,466            1,349           117               8.7% 1,349              117                 8.7%

Total Deliveries 105             104               1                1.0% 796               697              99                 14.2% 701                 95                   13.6%
Medi-Cal % 80.00% 83.43% -3.43% -4.1% 78.84% 83.43% -4.59% -5.5% 80.91% -2.07% -2.6%

Case Mix Index
Medicare 1.2793        1.6368          (0.3575)      -21.8% 1.5467 1.6368         (0.0901)         -5.5% 1.6099            (0.0632)           -3.9%
Medi-Cal 1.0990        1.1975          (0.0985)      -8.2% 1.1379 1.1975         (0.0596)         -5.0% 1.2076            (0.0697)           -5.8%

Overall 1.1804        1.3724          (0.1920)      -14.0% 1.2849 1.3724         (0.0875)         -6.4% 1.3656            (0.0807)           -5.9%

Ancillary Services
Inpatient  

Surgery Minutes 5,492          7,621            (2,129)        -27.9% 51,838          54,797         (2,959)           -5.4% 53,689            (1,851)             -3.4%
Surgery Cases 72               91                 (19)             -20.8% 607               638              (31)                -4.9% 644                 (37)                  -5.7%

Imaging Procedures 1,769          1,437            332            23.1% 11,103          10,473         630               6.0% 10,775            328                 3.0%

Outpatient
Surgery Minutes 14,853        13,476          1,377         10.2% 104,099        98,186         5,913            6.0% 95,789            8,310              8.7%

Surgery Cases 189             187               2                1.2% 1,328            1,361           (33)                -2.4% 1,334              (6)                    -0.4%
Endoscopy Procedures 155             178               (23)             -12.9% 1,214            1,297           (83)                -6.4% 1,271              (57)                  -4.5%

Imaging Procedures 4,382          4,004            378            9.5% 29,137          29,168         (31)                -0.1% 28,813            324                 1.1%
MRI Procedures 337             290               47              16.2% 2,230            2,112           118               5.6% 2,106              124                 5.9%
CT Procedures 1,386          1,204            182            15.1% 9,993            8,775           1,218            13.9% 8,734              1,259              14.4%

Ultrasound Procedures 1,515          1,298            217            16.7% 10,384          9,456           928               9.8% 9,191              1,193              13.0%
Lab Tests 35,469        30,839          4,630         15.0% 243,502        224,683       18,819          8.4% 218,902          24,600            11.2%

Dialysis 4                 3                   1                24.3% 41                 23                18                 74.9% 24                   17                   70.8%

Sierra View Medical Center
Financial Statistics Summary Report

January 2026

Jan-26 YTD

1



Increase/
Over/ Over/ Fiscal 25 (Decrease)

  Statistic Actual Budget (Under) % Var. Actual Budget (Under) % Var. YTD Jan-25 % Change

Sierra View Medical Center
Financial Statistics Summary Report

January 2026

Jan-26 YTD

Cancer Treatment Center
Chemo Treatments 2,074          1,922            152            7.9% 13,938          14,004         (66)                -0.5% 13,301            637                 4.8%

Radiation Treatments 1,526          1,833            (307)           -16.7% 11,836          13,353         (1,517)           -11.4% 12,741            (905)                -7.1%

Cardiac Cath Lab
Cath Lab IP Procedures 19 13 6                42.3% 109               97                12                 12.0% 88 21                   23.9%

Cath Lab OP Procedures 25 32 (7)               -21.3% 210               232              (22)                -9.3% 247 (37)                  -15.0%
Total Cardiac Cath Lab 44 45 (1)               -2.5% 319               329              (10)                -3.0% 335 (16)                  -4.8%

Outpatient Visits
Emergency 3,718          3,691            27              0.7% 24,598          24,335         263               1.1% 24,312            286                 1.2%

Total Outpatient 14,969 13,663 1,306         9.6% 102,544        99,543         3,001            3.0% 97,690 4,854              5.0%

Staffing
Paid FTE's 855.11        900.16          (45.05)        -5.0% 874.66          900.16         (25.50)           -2.8% 870.07            4.59                0.5%

Productive FTE's 751.70        772.13          (20.43)        -2.6% 752.96          772.13         (19.17)           -2.5% 744.65            8.31                1.1%
Paid FTE's/AOB 5.06            4.98              0.08           1.6% 5.01              5.20             (0.20)             -3.7% 5.15                (0.14)               -2.7%

Revenue/Costs (w/o Case Mix)
Revenue/Adj.Patient Day 11,857        10,395          1,462         14.1% 11,336          11,120         216               1.9% 11,273            64                   0.6%

Cost/Adj.Patient Day 2,918          2,762            155            5.6% 2,862            2,889           (27)                -0.9% 2,781              81                   2.9%
       

Revenue/Adj. Discharge 54,539        49,622          4,917         9.9% 53,045          55,068         (2,023)           -3.7% 54,693            (1,648)             -3.0%
Cost/Adj. Discharge 13,421        13,186          235            1.8% 13,391          14,306         (915)              -6.4% 13,491            (99)                  -0.7%

Adj. Discharge 1,138          1,173            (35)             -3.0% 8,023            7,510           514               6.8% 7,486              537                 7.2%

Net Op. Gain/(Loss) % 1.60% -3.49% 5.09% -145.8% 1.46% -3.49% 4.95% -141.7% -2.40% 3.85% -160.8%
Net Op. Gain/(Loss) $ 248,320      (522,084)       770,404     -147.6% 1,588,885     (1,808,898)   3,397,783     -187.8% (2,364,072)      3,952,957       -167.2%

Gross Days in Accts Rec. 109.09        95.03            14.06         14.8% 109.09          95.03           14.06            14.8% 84.29              24.80              29.4%
Net Days in Accts. Rec. 50.90          57.75            (6.85)          -11.9% 50.90            57.75           (6.85)             -11.9% 40.78              10.12              24.8%

2



Jan-26 Dec-25

Assets
Current Assets:
Cash & Cash Equivalents 7,655,278             5,217,445             
Short-Term Investments 1,318,521             134,495                
Assets Limited As To Use 3,293,988             3,417,604             

Patient Accounts Receivable 215,526,614         205,653,588         
Less Uncollectables (16,015,977)          (12,701,926)          
Contractual Allowances (176,066,396)        (170,919,348)        

Other Receivables 31,099,891           33,231,461           
Inventories 4,527,053             4,604,703             
Prepaid Expenses and Deposits 3,078,830             3,178,904             
Less Receivable - Current 301,020                301,020                

Total Current Assets 74,718,824           72,117,945           

Assets Limited as to use, Less
Current Requirements 32,690,723           32,613,942           
Long-Term Investments 141,101,624         142,083,402         
Property, Plant and Equipment, Net 70,254,015           70,529,548           
Intangible Right of use Assets 198,242                208,563                
SBITA Right of use Assets 2,350,136             2,479,390             
Lease Receivable - LT 532,473                557,615                
Other Investments 250,000                250,000                
Prepaid Loss on Bonds 1,111,920             1,132,899             

Total Assets 323,207,955         321,973,304         

Liabilities and Funds Balances
Current Liabilities
Bond Interest Payable 101,471                608,825                
Current Maturities of Bonds Payable 4,235,000             4,235,000             
Current Maturities of Long Term Debt 342,973                428,497                
Account Payable and Accrued Expenses 5,558,796             4,873,393             
Accrued Payroll and Related Costs 7,316,910             6,546,853             
Estimated Third-Party Payor Settlements 4,365,134             4,395,134             
Lease Liability - Current 129,125                129,125                
SBITA Liability - Current 1,472,212             1,472,212             
Total Current Liabilities 23,521,620           22,689,038           

Self-Insurance Reserves 2,084,541             2,085,274             
Capital Lease Liab LT 0                            0                            
Bonds Payable, Less Curr Reqt 29,040,000           29,040,000           
Bonds Premium Liability - LT 1,759,936             1,805,456             
Lease Liability - LT 90,389                  101,176                
SBITA Liability - LT 1,383,795             1,532,856             
Other Non Current Liabilities -                        -                        
Deferred Inflow - Leases 774,551                799,048                

Total Liabilities 58,654,832           58,052,848           

Unresticted Fund 258,350,395         258,350,395         
Profit or (Loss) 6,202,728             5,570,062             

Total Liabilities and Fund Balance 323,207,955         321,973,304         

-                        -                        

Sierra View Local Health Care District 
Balance Sheet



For Period Jan-26

 ACTUAL  BUDGET  VARIANCE % VARIANCE  ACTUAL YTD  BUDGET YTD  VARIANCE YTD % VARIANCE

Operating Revenue
Inpatient - Nursing 5,740,843            6,031,643            (290,800)            (5%) 38,949,918            39,067,940             (118,022)            (0%)
Inpatient - Ancillary 20,628,880          18,729,805          1,899,075          10% 132,238,742          133,405,530           (1,166,788)         (1%)
Total Inpatient Revenue 26,369,723          24,761,448          1,608,275          6% 171,188,660          172,473,470           (1,284,810)         (1%)

Outpatient - Ancillary 35,721,385          33,464,437          2,256,948          7% 254,395,878          241,065,013           13,330,865         6%
Total Patient Revenue 62,091,108          58,225,885          3,865,223          7% 425,584,538          413,538,483           12,046,055         3%

Medicare (18,663,144)        (19,091,961)         428,817             (2%) (130,178,449)         (136,204,635)          6,026,186           (4%)
Medi-Cal (18,766,922)        (17,982,169)         (784,753)            4% (142,739,612)         (127,289,807)          (15,449,805)        12%
Other/Charity (6,067,632)          (6,767,964)           700,332             (10%) (41,343,777)           (48,433,424)            7,089,647           (15%)
Discounts & Allowances (523,059)             (18,222)                (504,837)            2,770% (1,139,245)             (129,418)                 (1,009,827)         780%
Bad Debts (4,128,440)          (232,904)              (3,895,536)         1,673% (7,231,855)             (1,654,154)              (5,577,701)         337%
Total Deductions (48,149,197)        (44,093,220)         (4,055,977)         9% (322,632,937)         (313,711,438)          (8,921,499)         3%

Net Service Revenue 13,941,912          14,132,665          (190,753)            (1%) 102,951,601          99,827,045             3,124,556           3%
Other Operating Revenue 1,585,995            818,039               767,956             94% 6,078,055              5,797,848               280,207              5%
Total Operating Revenue 15,527,907          14,950,704          577,203             4% 109,029,656          105,624,893           3,404,763           3%

Salaries 6,193,648            6,235,095            41,447               1% 42,310,127            42,641,850             331,723              1%
S&W PTO 601,680               738,190               136,510             18% 4,822,360              5,052,379               230,019              5%
Employee Benefits 1,529,325            1,460,204            (69,121)              (5%) 10,639,833            10,221,428             (418,405)            (4%)
Professional Fees 1,673,130            1,907,882            234,752             12% 12,728,108            13,262,383             534,275              4%
Purchased Services 882,790               904,743               21,953               2% 6,342,086              6,352,134               10,048                0%
Supplies & Expenses 2,520,839            2,257,296            (263,543)            (12%) 16,900,268            16,070,455             (829,813)            (5%)
Maintenance & Repairs 290,023               303,754               13,731               5% 2,027,549              2,126,278               98,729                5%
Utilities 252,641               306,217               53,577               17% 2,150,981              2,143,519               (7,462)                (0%)
Rent/Lease 54,056                30,041                 (24,015)              (80%) 281,716                 210,287                  (71,429)              (34%)
Insurance 119,837               122,727               2,890                 2% 830,285                 859,089                  28,804                3%
Depreciation/Amortization 785,001               811,079               26,078               3% 5,660,705              5,677,553               16,848                0%
Other Expense 376,615               395,560               18,945               5% 2,746,755              2,816,436               69,681                2%
Impaired Costs -                      -                       -                    0% -                         -                         -                     0%
Total Operating Expense 15,279,587          15,472,788          193,201             1% 107,440,771          107,433,791           (6,980)                (0%)
Net Gain/(Loss) From Operations 248,320               (522,084)              770,404             (148%) 1,588,885              (1,808,898)              3,397,783           (188%)

District Taxes 138,477               138,477               -                    0% 969,339                 969,339                  -                     0%
Investment Income 485,286               488,226               (2,940)                (1%) 3,703,188              3,417,582               285,606              8%
Other Non - Operating Income 34,139                40,308                 (6,169)                (15%) 204,268                 282,156                  (77,888)              (28%)
Interest Expense (70,627)               (70,649)                22                      0% (502,592)                (494,543)                 (8,049)                (2%)
Non-Operating Expense (62,716)               (39,854)                (22,862)              (57%) (273,835)                (278,973)                 5,138                 2%
Total Non-Operating Income 524,560               556,508               (31,948)              (6%) 4,100,367              3,895,561               204,806              5%

-                    -                     
Gain/(Loss) Before Net Inc/(Decr) FV Invstmt 772,880               34,424                 738,456             2,145% 5,689,252              2,086,663               3,602,589           173%
Net Incr/(Decr) in the Fair Value Invstmt (140,213)             162,500               (302,713)            (186%) 513,476                 1,137,500               (624,024)            (55%)
Net Gain/(Loss) 632,666               196,924               435,742             221% 6,202,728              3,224,163               2,978,565           92%

-                      
review 8,324,653            8,433,489            108,836             57,772,320            57,915,657             143,337              

Sierra View Local Health Care District 
Income Statement 



Current Month YTD

Cash flows from operating activities:
Operating Income/(Loss) 248,320                      1,588,885         
Adjustments to reconcile operating income/(loss) to net cash from operating activities

Depreciation/Amortization 785,001                      5,660,705         
Provision for bad debts 3,314,051                   1,795,180         

-                    
     Change in assets and liabilities: -                    

Patient accounts receivable, net (4,725,979)                  (5,843,080)        
Other receivables 2,131,570                   (10,831,436)      
Inventories 77,650                        (34,142)             
Prepaid expenses and deposits 100,074                      (458,912)           
Advance refunding of bonds payable, net 20,980                        146,857            
Accounts payable and accrued expenses 685,403                      60,848              
Deferred inflows - leases (24,497)                       (171,479)           
Accrued payroll and related costs 770,057                      (1,878,525)        
Estimated third-party payor settlements (30,000)                       (43,579)             
Self-insurance reserves (732)                            (44,547)             

Total adjustments 3,103,576                   (11,642,112)      

Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities 3,351,896                   (10,053,227)      

Cash flows from noncapital financing activities:
District tax revenues 138,477                      969,339            
Noncapital grants and contributions, net of other expenses (47,814)                       (180,594)           

               Net cash provided by (used in) noncapital financing activities 90,663                        788,745            

Cash flows from capital and related financing activities:
Purchase of capital assets (499,146)                     (4,386,379)        
Proceeds from sale of assets 5,000                          5,000                
Proceeds from debt borrowings -                              -                    
Proceeds from lease receivable, net 25,142                        174,162            
Principal payments on debt borrowings -                              (4,235,000)        
Interest payments (609,264)                     (1,307,260)        
Issuance of bonds payable and bond premium liability -                              -                    
Net change in notes payable and lease liability (116,118)                     (525,618)           
Net changes in assets limited as to use 46,835                        1,793,412         

Net cash provided by (used in) capital and related  financing activities (1,147,551)                  (8,481,683)        

Cash flows from investing activities:
Net (purchase) or sale of investments 841,565                      (1,532,420)        
Investment income 485,286                      3,703,188         

               Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities 1,326,851                   2,170,768         

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents: 3,621,859                   (15,575,396)      

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of month/year 5,351,940                   24,549,196       

Cash and cash equivalents at end of month 8,973,799                   8,973,799
8,973,799                   8,973,799

0.00                            0.00                  

SIERRA VIEW MEDICAL CENTER
Statement of Cash Flows

January-26

 6



SIERRA VIEW MEDICAL CENTER

MONTHLY CASH RECEIPTS
January 2026

PATIENT
 ACCOUNTS OTHER TOTAL
RECEIVABLE ACTIVITY DEPOSITED

Feb-25 9,516,870            8,335,277         17,852,147      
Mar-25 13,111,820          451,259            13,563,079      
Apr-25 13,460,422          8,143,789         21,604,211      

May-25 12,344,513          9,292,615         21,637,128      
Jun-25 10,549,177          4,753,556         15,302,733      
Jul-25 13,219,919          932,239            14,152,158      

Aug-25 9,922,993            1,161,531         11,084,524      
Sep-25 12,323,268          233,998            12,557,266      
Oct-25 12,181,755          7,001,985         19,183,740      
Nov-25 10,154,998          601,439            10,756,437      
Dec-25 13,361,348          2,861,896         16,223,244      
Jan-26 10,470,878          6,040,603         16,511,481      

NOTE:

Cash receipts in "Other Activity" include the following:

    - Other Operating Revenues - Receipts for Café, rebates, refunds,
      and miscellaneous funding sources 

    - Non-Operating Revenues - rental income, property tax revenues, sale of assets

    - Medi-Cal OP Supplemental and DSH Funds 
    - Medi-Cal and Medi-Care Tentative Cost Settlements 
    - Grants, IGT, HQAF, & QIP Supplemental Funds
    - Medicare interim payments 

January 2026 Summary of Other Activity:
3,651,022        Health Net QIP IGT CY24

501,531           HHS Rural Floor Calculation FY20
253,428           M-Care interim payments 

280                  Aetna Inc DHDP CY23 PH 1
1,172,620        Property Taxes 

461,722           Miscellaneous
6,040,603        01/26 Total Other Activity

 7


	Consent Agenda - Approved by Senior Team
	Consent Agenda - Approved by MEC
	Minutes for Approval
	Financials

	PATIENTS LABEL_3: 
	By: 
	Time: 
	Date request filled: 
	PATIENTS LABEL_2: 
	Date_2: 
	patient: 
	undefined_8: 
	undefined_7: 
	Phone_2: 
	Printed Name: 
	Date: 
	Patient Name_2: 
	To: 
	From: 
	HIVAIDS Test Results: Off
	Genetic Testing Information: Off
	Drug and Alcohol Abuse Results: Off
	PATIENTS LABEL: 
	undefined_6: 
	Operative Reports: Off
	EEG: Off
	Progress Notes: Off
	Pathology Reports: Off
	Mental Health: Off
	EKG: Off
	Radiology CD: Off
	History  Physical Exams: Off
	Emergency Reports: Off
	Other: Off
	Radiology Reports: Off
	Laboratory Reports: Off
	Discharge Summary: Off
	Consultations: Off
	Billing Statements: Off
	State reason 2: 
	State reason 1: 
	Paper Copy: Off
	Email email will be encrypted: Off
	CD: Off
	Relationship to patient: 
	I authorize_2: 
	Email_2: 
	Fax Number: 
	Phone Number: 
	Zip Code_2: 
	State_2: 
	City_2: 
	Address_2: 
	Name of HospitalClinicPerson: 
	I authorize: 
	Email: 
	undefined_5: 
	undefined_4: 
	Phone: 
	undefined_3: 
	undefined_2: 
	Date of Birth: 
	Zip Code: 
	State: 
	City: 
	Address: 
	undefined: 
	Patient Name: 


